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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision

to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Good Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited financial results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
2019/2020 was a critical year and full of challenges for the

Group. During the year, the Group continued to focus on the
provision of general hospital services in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"”). The Group's revenue for the year ended
31 March 2020 was approximately HK$144.591 million (2019:
approximately HK$326.926 million), representing approximately
a decrease of 55.77% as compared with 2019. The operating
loss from operation was approximately HK$48.579 million (2019:
approximately HK$44.529 million). Net loss attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$49.504 million (2019: net
loss of approximately HK$50.356 million). The loss was mainly due
to an impairment loss on goodwill for the year ended 31 March
2020.

OPERATION REVIEW

General hospital services

The Group operates three general hospitals in Jiaxing, Zhuhai
and Beijing (2019: four general hospitals in Chongging, Jiaxing,
Zhuhai, and Beijing), respectively in the PRC and continues to
allocate resources to look for business opportunities to expand
the hospital services. The segmental revenue for the year
was approximately HK$144.591 million (2019: approximately
HK$326.926 million), representing a decrease of approximately
55.77% as compared with 2019.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our customers,
suppliers, business partners for their support. Also, | would like to
offer my highest gratitude to our shareholders for their devotion
and to our employees for their loyalty and contributions made

during the year.

Ng Chi Lung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2020 is as follows:

o Revenue was approximately HK$144.591 million (2019:
approximately HK$326.926 million), representing a decrease

of approximately 55.77% as compared with last year.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$60.997 million (2019:
approximately HK$142.803 million), representing a decrease

of approximately 57.29% as compared with last year.

o The operating loss from the operation was approximately
HK$48.579 million (2019: approximately HK$44.529
million). Net loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$49.504 million (2019: net loss of
approximately HK$50.356 million). The loss was mainly due
to an impairment loss on goodwill for the year ended 31
March 2020.

o The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general

hospital services in the PRC.

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$144.591 million
(2019: approximately HK$326.926 million) for the year ended 31
March 2020, a decrease of approximately 55.77% as compared

with last year.

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group operated three
general hospitals in Jiaxing, Zhuhai, and Beijing respectively in
the PRC (2019: four general hospitals in Chongqing, Jiaxing,
Zhuhai, and Beijing), and was principally engaged in the provision
of general hospital services, including but not limited to medical
wards, surgical wards, medical checkup and examination. The
management envisaged more diversified hospital services being
readily available to satisfy various needs of the public in the next
few years, from the common illness treatments to the treatments
of special and difficult diseases. Therefore, the Group will continue
to allocate resources to develop such services either from our

existing hospitals or through collaboration with strategic partners.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

Other revenue
Other revenue, primarily including finance lease interest
income, bank interest income and sundry income amounted to
approximately HK$2.582 million (2019: approximately HK$0.746

million) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1)
salaries and wages of sales and marketing personnel, (2) rental
expenses, and (3) transportation expenses. For the year ended
31 March 2020, selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$31.764 million (2019:
HK$67.016 million),

52.60% as compared with last year, which was due to the disposal

approximately

representing a decrease of approximately

of Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital and Edward Hospital.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to approximately HK$67.667 million (2019:
approximately HK$85.005 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 20.40% as compared with last year. It was due to

the disposal of Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital and Edward Hospital.

Finance costs
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the finance costs of the
Group were approximately HK$7.137 million (2019: approximately
HK$1.536 million),

364.65% as compared with last year. It was due to the increase in

representing an increase of approximately

interest expenses on lease liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss from operations attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group recorded a net loss from the operation before taxation
of approximately HK$55.716 million (2019:
HK$46.065 million),

last year. The loss was mainly attributable to impairment loss on

approximately

representing an increase as compared with

goodwill of approximately HK$13.985 million recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

In April 2020, the management of the Company reviewed the
management accounts for the eleven months ended 29 February
2020 and was of the view that the sales performance of Beijing
Tongji Hospital Co., Limited (“Beijing Tongji”) declined compare
with last year. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, a majority of the
department in Beijing Tongji have suspended operations. To tackle
the threat to public health posed by the Pandemic, many countries
have implemented lockdown measures to slow the spread of virus
by reducing face to face human interaction, resulting in further
pressure on Beijing Tongji profit performance. The management
of the Company considered that impairment should be made
to goodwill. As a result, an impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$13.985 million, was recognised for Beijing

Tongji.

The acquisition of Beijing Tongji was completed in September
2016. For more details of the acquisition of the Beijing Tongji,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14
September 2016 and 30 September 2016.

Dividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

BEERN W R DM

FAFHAABEEEREGR

AEEESRBUAKCEEREBBRTZIENS
55,716,000 7T ( =& — N 5 : 846,065,000
B BEFEMEMN -BRADEIEANEZE
TECEFZACS+-HLFERIEERE
E5384913,985,00058 JT AT 81

REZZZZEFNA -ALAEEEERNEE
TEZEFZRA-tTHARBLET-—ERZE
HEERE RRAR/LREEERABRIAF (T4

RRAB2HEXBEBREF TR -ARER
(mwumﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ§E%%%%WE§%%

B RAEHARTRENNARBERE R
%E%EEﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ@ﬁ¢E%me
REBREFRSER EtNERLRRAEBEZR

FRBE-SERB-ANTEEERE EBY
EHEEERE B SRt ZEEEREE
B E 18 £913,985,0008 7T ©
tFEEABCKRWEBR-_ZE—"FLATK -FHE
WBLREE2ESHE F2HMAQATBAH
BZE-—XRNFEAATHNBERZZ—-XR"FNA
=t+tHzZDE-

E%

iﬁfﬁiﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ% (ZF-NF: xﬁ) °

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £

1



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to assess the impact of COVID-19 on the
Group's operations and financial performance, closely monitor
the Group’s exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection
with COVID-19 on an ongoing basis, and will strengthen the
cost savings initiatives in view of the challenging conditions.
There is still a possibility of economic downturn in China and an
uncertainty about the impact of the outbreak of the Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") on the economy, the Group holds
a positive and optimistic attitude about the prospects of the
healthcare industry in China. Looking forward to the financial
year ahead, the management is confident in the prospects of the
increasing needs and marketing demands for quality and focused
medical services. Those will continue to fuel the growing trends
to improve the quality and bring more advanced technologies
and procedures to the market. While we continue to improve the
existing service standard and provide medical services that are
required by local communities, we intend to work closely with
the leading healthcare providers and educational institutions in
the world to ensure we are adequately equipped to take the
advantage of the promising market opportunities in China.

The management believes that it is important to keep an open
mind for the exploration of newly developed medical technologies
and procedures to address the diversified local needs from the
communities where our hospitals are. Again, chronical disease
treatment and management have become a priority because
of the size of the market and the stressed focus by the central
government. The management has already planned to get
involved in this area and the preliminary results have confirmed
the value and potentials of further development. The management
is optimistic about the upcoming year in terms of the fast growth
and efficient integration of our resources to accomplish the
expected goals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$55.441 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$126.830 million).

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$80.554 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$171.489 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$40.950 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$62.405 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.967 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
2.748).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was not
applicable based on outstanding debts (comprising bank
borrowings, convertible note and promissory note) and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents over total equity

(including all capital and reserves of the Group) (2019: N/A).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material capital

commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FINANCING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the
Group’s related policies is made under collective but extensive
considerations on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate

risk.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Directors consider the
Group’s risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no bank

borrowings.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from provision of general hospital services. Financial

information in respect of these operations is presented in Note 6.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2020, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$29.168 million (2019:
approximately HK$29.168 million) divided into 2,818,249,944
ordinary shares and 98,500,000 non-voting convertible preference
shares (2019: 2,818,249,944 ordinary shares and 98,500,000
non-voting convertible preference shares) of HK$0.01 (2019:
HK$0.01) each.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 233 (2019: 720) full time

employees (including Directors) as shown in the following table:
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, staff costs (including Directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$68.813 million
(2019: approximately HK$89.121 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option schemes to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and
share ownership. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, there were
no outstanding share options granted under the share option

schemes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Refurbishment of Edinburgh International Hospital

On 1 April 2019, Edinburgh Hospital Management (Putian)
Company Limited* (BT EREE (BFH)BR2AT) ("Edinburgh
Hospital Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Edinburgh
International Investments Ltd. (“Edinburgh International”) which,
in turn, is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the refurbishment agreement (the “Refurbishment
Agreement”) with CSCEC Strait Construction and Development
Co., Ltd (“CSCEC Construction”) for the refurbishment of
Edinburgh International Hospital at the cost of RMB41,600,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$45,427,000).
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#JiEdinburgh International Hospital
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On 6 August 2019, Edinburgh Hospital Management and CSCEC
Construction entered into the supplemental agreement to the
Refurbishment Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to which the parties to the Refurbishment Agreement
have mutually agreed in writing to amend and supplement
certain terms of the Refurbishment Agreement, including (i) the
subject matter for the refurbishment would exclude the medical
purification area; (ii) the refurbishment period was estimated to be
127 days from the date of the Supplemental Agreement; and (iii)
the revised refurbishment cost would amount to RMB27,049,600
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,538,000).

The refurbishment had been substantially completed in December
2019. Edinburgh International Hospital is in the course of

obtaining the relevant licences for its operations.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 2 April 2019 and 6 August 2019; and the
announcements of the Company dated 26 September 2018 and
12 October 2018 in relation to the establishment of Edinburgh

International Hospital.

Disposal of the entire issued share capital of Sino Brave
On 16 April 2019, Ally Health International Limited ("Ally
Health”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor
and Jing Hoi Ou Investment Limited (“Jing Hoi”) as purchaser
entered into the disposal agreement, pursuant to which, Ally
Health conditionally agreed to sell and Jing Hoi conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Sino Brave
Investments Limited (“Sino Brave”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Sino Brave Group”), at the consideration of HK$1,000,000

(the “Sino Brave Disposal”).

Completion of the Sino Brave Disposal took place on 31 August
2019. Upon completion, the Sino Brave Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company. The financial results of the Sino
Brave Group will no longer be consolidated into the consolidated

financial statements of the Company following completion.
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For more details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated
24 May 2019; and the announcements of the Company dated 16
April 2019 and 31 August 2019.

Tenancy for Jiaxing Shuguang Medical Beauty Clinic

On 17 July 2019, lJiaxing Shuguang Medical Beauty Clinic Co.,
Ld* (ZEMEXEBEEZAMBIEERAT), an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Shanghai
Yuanhao Business Management Co., Ltd* ( LB TEHEXEEAR
FR-A 7)) as landlord entered into the tenancy agreement in respect
of the lease of a total of 33 rooms located at 1-4/F, Jiaxing World
Trade Centre, Nanhu District, Jiaxing City, the PRC* ( & B 71 & i#f
B Bt R E S F ) for the operation of the Jiaxing Shuguang
Medical Beauty Clinic, for a term of 12 years and 11 months,
commencing from 1 February 2020 and expiring on 31 December
2032 (both days inclusive) at an annual rent of RMB2,923,029.62
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,192,000) for the first two
years, followed by an increment of 5% every two years for
the remaining of the term (payable semi-annually in advance)
(exclusive of management fees, utilities expenses and property
charges), with a rent-free period of six months, commencing
from 1 August 2019 and expiring on 31 January 2020 (both days

inclusive) (exclusive of utilities expenses (if any)).

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 July 2019.

Disposal of the entire issued share capital of Merry Sky
On 23 March 2020, Ally Health as vendor and Mr. Lin
Guofeng (#El#£ 54 ) as purchaser entered into the disposal
agreement, pursuant to which, Ally Health conditionally agreed
to sell and Mr. Lin Guofeng conditionally agreed to purchase
the entire issued share capital of Merry Sky Investments Limited
("Merry Sky”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Merry Sky
Group”), at the consideration of HK$11 million (the “Merry Sky
Disposal”).
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Completion of the Merry Sky Disposal took place on 30 March
2020. Upon completion, the Merry Sky Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company. The financial results of the Merry
Sky Group will no longer be consolidated into the consolidated

financial statements of the Company following completion.

For more details,
Company dated 23 March 2020.

please refer to the announcement of the

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures during the year.

Tenancy for Edinburgh International Hospital

On 31 July 2019, Edinburgh Hospital Management as tenant
and Putian Medical Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd* (BSH ™ &
BREEEXREABMRDE) as landlord entered into the tenancy
agreement in respect of the lease of Units C3-1#, C3-2# and C3-
# (Land no. 3-B), Lianfa Putian E-Commerce City, Licheng North
Avenue, Chengxiang District, Putian, Fujian, the PRC* (S H ™ 3
FEHHILRNENBEXBEHESEHM G =-B) C3-14C3-2#
C3-3#E JT) for the operation of Edinburgh International Hospital,
for a term of 60 months, commencing from 24 February 2024 and
expiring on 23 February 2029 (both days inclusive) at a monthly
rent of RMB224,771.36 (equivalent to approximately HK$245,450)
(exclusive of utilities expenses but inclusive of tax), with (i) a rent-
free period of 60 months, commencing from 24 February 2019
and expiring on 23 February 2024 (both days inclusive) (exclusive
of utilities expenses (if any)); and (i) an option to renew for 120
months, commencing from 24 February 2029 and expiring on
23 February 2039 (both days inclusive) which is exercisable by
Edinburgh Hospital Management within two months prior to the
expiry of the initial 120 months.
For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 August 2019.
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Change of head office and principal place of business

in Hong Kong

With effect from 4 July 2019, the address of the head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company has
been changed to Unit 3309, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The telephone number, facsimile number and website of the

Company remain unchanged.

Possible cooperation in Hainan

On 3 November 2019, China Merchant Hainan Development
Investment Co., Ltd.* (AR EMBAZREBRAOFE), Hainan
Boao Super Hospital Co., Ltd* (R B EBRERERQT)
and Edinburgh International entered into the letter of intent in
relation to the cooperation for the establishment of the University
of Edinburgh Boao International Diabetes Centert (BT & K2
BEBMRIERBER L), being the clinical services pilot project
for sino-foreign collaborative teaching hospital (the “Possible
Cooperation”). The Possible Cooperation aims to introduce unique
diabetes diagnosis and treatment technology from the University
of Edinburgh to provide diabetes diagnosis and treatment
programme in the PRC, in order to attract patients from countries
and regions along the Belt and Road to the Boao Lecheng Pilot
Zone* (TEEE L4 % 1TE) to enjoy medical tourism services, and to

promote the development of super hospitals and pilot zone.

Possible acquisition in Changzhou

On 13 March 2020, Ally Health as the intended purchaser, and
Deng Ruibao* (Bf#% & ) as the intended vendor, entered into the
non-legally binding memorandum of understanding, pursuant to
which, Ally Health intends to acquire and Deng Ruibao intends to
dispose of not less than 70% of the equity interest in Changzhou
Shuguang Medical Beauty Hospital Limited* ( & M EB ¢ BB X R EE
BRERAA) .

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 March 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

No significant event took place subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

On 21 June 2019, Mr. Ng Chi Lung has been appointed as the
chairman of the nomination and corporate governance committee
(the “Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee”)
and Dr. Jiang Tao has been re-designated as a member of the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee.

Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur (“Mr. Lau”) has been appointed as an
independent nonexecutive Director with effect from 4 October
2019. Mr. Lau has been appointed as a member of each of the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination

and Corporate Governance Committee.

Dr. Liu Chenli (“Dr. Liu”) has been re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 4 October 2019. Dr. Liu has
resigned as a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.
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Market Risks

As the country has recently restructured its central ministries and
agencies responsible for the healthcare, the functions of different
departments are being reassigned, thus potentially slowing down
the procedures and work in relation to the hospital operations and
management engaged by the company. The changes will also have
some potential impact on the further establishment of policies and
regulations at various levels of the local governments. We view
those are potential risks for the execution of our marketing plans

and implementation of the cooperation.

Operational Risks

It is noted that the regional governance of the hospitals varies
from city to city due to the different focuses on local medical
services and social welfare. This will certainly have some impact on
our operations because we manage our hospitals in different cities
in the country. This has been and will be a huge challenge to the
management for the standardization and consistency of hospital
operations. The efforts should be made to cover the fundamental
requirements in compliance with the regional policy as well as the
core guidelines issued by the central government to ensure the

smooth and effective operation.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ng Chi Lung (“Mr. Ng”), aged 31, has seven years

of experience in founding new business and commercial
management. Mr. Ng studied at Macquarie University (major
in accounting) in Australia after obtained his diploma from
the Sydney Institute of Business and Technology in 2008.
Since February 2012, Mr. Ng founded and managed business
including the scope of manufacturing and services sector. He
was an executive director of Yueshou Environmental Holdings
Limited (currently known as China Gem Holdings Limited) (stock
code:1191), being a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from September 2014 to April 2016. He was also
a vice chairman and an executive director of Theme International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 990), being a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from April 2016 to July 2018.
Mr Ng was appointed as an executive Director and chairman of
the Board on 23 July 2018. Mr. Ng is also a director of various

subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 64, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master’s degrees in
audiology and in special education from Lamar University of Texas
in the United States. He served as senior management in several
enterprises in the United States, Canada and the PRC with over
20 years of experience in senior management, consultancy and
investment in the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United States.
He is currently the life time visiting Professor of the Kunming
Normal University, and formerly Associate Professor of Dalhousie
University of Canada, Adjunct professor of Sichuan University,
Sichuan Foreign Language University and Sun Yatsen Medical
University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive Director and
deputy chief executive of the Company on 3 January 2007 and
26 March 2010 respectively. Dr. Jiang was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 20 April 2015.
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ESERSREEAEEHE

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 52, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng is an independent non-executive director of Smart-Core
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2166) since March 2016, being a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
a non-executive director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2326), being a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from May 2018 to November 2019.
Mr. Zheng was appointed as an executive Director on 1 August
2007. Mr. Zheng is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Liu Chenli ("Dr. Liu"), aged 39, holds a doctor of philosophy
degree from The University of Hong Kong in 2011. Dr. Liu is a
professor of Shenzhen Institute Advanced Technology, Chinese
Academy of Sciences and specialized in Synthetic Biology
Engineering Research. Dr. Liu was an independent non-executive
director of Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code:
58), being a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from May 2015 to May 2017 and was re-designated
as a non-executive director from May 2017 to August 2018. Dr.
Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 9
July 2018, and was re-designated as a non-executive Director on 4
October 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“Ms. Wong"”), aged 56, has over 26
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Chartered Accountants in Australia
and New Zealand, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioner and the Certified Tax Advisor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in economics
from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Wong is currently
the managing director of a private company providing consulting
and management services, as well as the chief financial officer
of a local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Phoenitron
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8066), being a company listed on
GEM. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 1 November 2007.
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Dr. Lam Huen Sum ("Dr. Lam”), aged 39, was graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor’s degree in arts,
diploma in education, master degree in social sciences and master
of philosophy and the University of Hong Kong with a doctor of
philosophy. Dr. Lam has been an adjunct professor at University of
Jinan* (IUERER KE) |, a member of the Advisory Board of Open
Institute, City University of Macau* CEBPFIHH K2 AHER), a
specialist in Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (BB E2M RMEEEFTER) , a Fellow
of Chartered Management Institute, a Fellow and Executive Board
Member/Accreditor of Medical and Health Board of International
Industry and Professional Accreditation Association. Dr. Lam has
been appointed by Hong Kong College of Technology, as an
external examiner and a Faculty consultant since September 2016

and January 2017 respectively.

Dr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58), being a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June 2017
to June 2019. Dr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-

executive Director on 9 July 2018.

Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur (“"Mr. Lau”), aged 38, holds a bachelor
degree of laws from The London School of Economics and Political
Science and a master of economics from The University of Hong
Kong. He is licenced to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of

Hong Kong).
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Mr. Lau has over 15 years of experience spanning hedge
fund, private equity and investment banking in Asia. He is
the co-founder and currently a partner of Ark Pacific Capital
Management, a multi-strategy alternative asset manager focusing
in Greater China. He was investment director of Elliott Advisors
(HK) Ltd ("Elliott”), the Asian arm of Elliott Associates, a global
multi-strategy hedge fund. During his tenure at Elliott, he was
responsible for investments across asset classes including publicly-
listed securities, private equity, structured credit, real estate and
fund-of-funds investments in China, Hong Kong and South East
Asia. Prior to this, he worked as an investment banker at Citigroup
in the Technology, Media & Telecom team running a wide range
of mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance transactions.
He began his career at JPMorgan's investment banking division
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is also a member of the Beijing Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Lau was appointed as an independent non-

executive Director on 4 October 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 45, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 20 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of
corporate governance as one of the key elements in creating
shareholders’ value. The Company is also committed to achieving
high standard of corporate governance that can properly protect
and promote the interests of all shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability of the Company. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
(effective from 1 April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the the
GEM Listing Rules.

Code provision A.5.1 provides that the Company should establish
a nomination committee chaired by the chairman of the board or
an independent non-executive director. Upon the appointment
of Mr. Ng Chi Lung, being the chairman of the Board, as
the chairman of the Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee on 21 June 2019, the Company has complied with the
code provisions in the CG Code contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a set of code for the required standard
of dealings in securities by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of directors of the Company and the Directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard with
respect to the securities dealings of the Company and there was

no event of non-compliance for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD

The Board assumes overall responsibilities for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its business by
The Board

focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with attention

directing and supervising the Company's affairs.

particularly paid to the financial performance of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with a
view to ensuring that the Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances

at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

There is a clear division of the responsibilities of the Board and
the management. The Board delegated its responsibilities to
the Directors and senior management to deal with day-to-day

operations and review those arrangements on a periodic basis.

Management has to report back to the Board and obtain prior
approval before making decisions for key matters or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference which are disclosed on the Company’s website and the

Stock Exchange Website.

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

EEE
ESE2HEEARACEEREE BB
EREFRRRNAZEBHARAREEL 2K
DEEERET ESSEEERCOERK
RBE RHEEARAZHMHERR-

FEESEY2ERERHEE - HEEER
URABIREZEREARY UBERESERE
FHEBEREGRAANEIEBIT EES—
RANBEBRT KOEZSRUERES
RBUBEZR AHERAXHAARFTRE-

EXNEEEANEC I -EEEKARE
EEXHESHSNEEAESE YHAEH
BmABEAZ -

EEABHBEASEFLRERRERL D
BEMARZN ANEERERRMRSEL
HE-EFERBEERERER BAKAD
GET

ExgCRY=-EZEE IEKZEE R
BEREEERZEERFMEES  UEREK
NABEHER2EE -MALRAESEES
ZRMEUEEGTEBESE WS RA
B4 A % B 3 P 4 U 3 B

ARBCLZHBESENESEERE  UR
BARARAESERERAEDFEENEE R
BEETHREEENRREFSSERR -

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020



Board Composition and Attendance Records of
Directors

The Board currently composes of three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2020, eight full
Board meetings were held and attendance (either in person or

Corporate Governance Report
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through other electronic means of communication) record of each ~ BEARN)ESZSEH BEREXZEE - %ﬁ@ﬂ
Director at the meetings of the Board together with the meetings ZEEURRERCEERZETERERNS
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the E-NE/ZEBERTIRRAGZLHE
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and general EHHOT -
meetings held in 2019/2020 are set out below.
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HEXY, GEBE
Nomination General
and meetings
Corporate held during
Audit  Remuneration Governance the year
Board Committee Committee Committee 2019/2020
RIS-1E/
RER k- ot 33
LEER BTz
Name of Directors EEnE Exg ERZRE FHMZERE ZRE BRXE
Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Ng Chi Lung REEEE 8/8 N/A T & N/A T8 22 1N
Dr. Jiang Tao BREL 8/8 N/A T8 A N/A T8 A 22 11
Mr. Zheng Gang BEEE 8/8 N/A T8 22 N/A T8 11
Non-executive Director FHRTER
Dr. Liu Chen ARIBL 6/8 NA TR NA TR NA TR 71
Independent non- BLFTES
executive Directors
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEEut 8/8 4/ 2 22 il
Dr. Lam Huen Sum HaREL 7/8 4/4 22 22 17
Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur HEELL 6/8 3/4 12 112 0/1

“The list of the Directors and their Role and Function” has been
maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among
the Board members, if any, are disclosed under the “Directors’ and
Senior Management's Profiles” on pages 23 to 26 of this report.
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Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise that each Director brings to bear in its deliberations,
the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively oversee

the business of the Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, with diversified expertise, skills and experience, play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that
the Board maintains high standards of corporate governance.
The Board had received from each independent non-executive
Director a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of independent non-executive
Directors up to the date of this report is in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

On a regular basis, senior management provides the directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect. All Directors are kept informed of and duly
briefed of major changes and information that may affect the

Group's business in a timely manner.

Every Board member is entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The company secretary
continuously updates all Directors on the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate

governance practice.
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Training and Continuous Development for Directors
Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. For Directors to keep abreast
of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Company had provided trainings for Directors in the form
of seminar and reading materials. The Company has devised a
training record to assist the Directors to record the training they
have undertaken. Also, the completed records are received from
each of the Directors as confirmation. In addition, the Group will,
if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to the Directors
to ensure that they keep abreast with the current requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether

any changes.

DIRECTORS
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific

term and subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) of the Company, one-third of the directors who
have been longest in office since their last election or re-election
are also subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general

meeting. All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

Corporate Governance Report
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 provides the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Ng Chi Lung is the chairman of the Board.
As the chairman, Mr. Ng Chi Lung manages the Board's business
and activities and provides guidance and direction to other Board
members to ensure that the Board works effectively and acts
in the best interest of the Company. Dr. Jiang Tao is the chief
executive officer of the Company and is responsible for the day-

to-day management and operations of the Group.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person to discuss and formulate
overall strategic direction and objectives and also approve annual,
interim and quarterly results as well as other significant matters of
the Company. Execution of daily operational matters is delegated

to management.

The company secretary assists the executive Directors in preparing
notice and agenda for the meetings, and ensures that the
Company complied with the corporate governance practices and
other compliance matters. Annual meeting schedules and draft
agenda of each meeting are normally made available to Directors
in advance. At least 14 days' notice of all reqular Board meetings
were given to all Directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular discussion. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each regular board
meeting or committee meeting (or such other period as agreed) to
keep Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed

decisions.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board

procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are recorded in
significant detail for any decision and recommendation made
during the meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to Directors or committee members within a reasonable
time after the meetings are held and taken as the true records
of the proceedings of such meetings. All minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable

time on reasonable notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on

disclosure due to regulatory requirements.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by way
of a Board/committee meeting and the interested shareholder or
Director shall not vote nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum
present at the relevant meeting. Independent non-executive
Director who, and whose associates, have no material interest in

the transaction, should be present at such a Board meeting.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee of the Company
(the "Audit Committee”) on 2 November 2001,
terms of reference compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the

with written

GEM Listing Rules and is disclosed on the Company’s website. The
Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, Dr. Lam Huen Sum
and Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the
chairlady of the Audit Committee.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial
controls of the Group; to oversee the performance of risk
management and internal control systems and financial reporting
process; and to monitor the integrity of the financial statements
and compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to

oversee independence and qualifications of the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, four meetings were held.

The main duties of the Audit Committee during the year include:

(@) reviewing the Group's audited annual and unaudited interim
and quarterly results and reports and considering any

significant or unusual items before submission to the Board;

(b) reviewing the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors;

(c) reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures; and

(d) advising on material even or drawing the attention of the

management on related risks.

The external auditors were invited to attend the said meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the audit
and financial reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the

reappointment of external auditors.
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The Group's audited consolidated financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
On 11 February 2014,

nomination and corporate governance committee of the Company

the Board resolved to establish a

(the “"Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee”)
in place and stead of the previously nomination committee
of the Company, which was established on 27 March 2012 in
compliance with the code provision. Written terms of reference
were disclosed on the Company’s website. The Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee has five members comprising
the chairman, Mr. Ng Chi Lung, the chief executive officer, Dr.
Jiang Tao and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, Dr. Lam Huen Sum and Mr. Lau Tak Kei
Arthur. Mr. Ng Chi Lung is the chairman of the Nomination and

Corporate Governance Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition, including the skills, knowledge and experience, of
the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; identify individuals suitable qualified to
become directors and select, or make recommendations to the
Board for directorships; make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors; and keep the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two meetings were held.
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The main duties of the Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee during the year include:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition, including the

skills, knowledge and experience of the Board;

(b)  making recommendations on any proposed changes to the

Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

() making recommendation on the re-election of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the Company's 2019

annual general meeting; and

(d) assessing the independence of all the independent non-

executive Directors.

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy on 8 November
2018, which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the

Board. For details, please refer to page 59 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 3 June 2005
with written terms of reference as disclosed on the Company's
website. The Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising an executive Director, Mr. Zheng Gang and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne, Dr. Lam Huen Sum and Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur. Ms. Wong

Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
the determination of specific remuneration package of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two meetings were held.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee during the year

include:

(@) determining and making recommendations to the Board
regarding the specific remuneration package of each
of the executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office

or appointment; and

(b) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration of each of the non-executive

Directors and members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment and responsibilities in

the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows of
the Group. In preparing the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 71 of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training to

update his skills and knowledge.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing its

effectiveness.
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The Group's internal control and risk management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and manage rather than
In 2020, the

Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed and is satisfied

eliminate risks of failure in operational systems.

with the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control and

risk management systems of the Group.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Board, as supported
by the Audit Committee, conducted review of the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control system for
the year, which covers all material controls, including financial,

operational and compliance control.

In meeting such responsibility, the management of the Group
conducts internal audit which includes analysis and appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems. The management reviews all major
operations of the Group on a cyclical basis, and summarises
all material issues and findings to the Board and the Audit

Committee annually.

In particular, the Group has established guidelines and procedures
for the approval and control of expenditures, to ensure the
reliability of the financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency
of operation and the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board will review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function

annually.
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The audit reviews cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Results of the audit reviews
are submitted to the members of the Audit Committee for
discussion at the Audit Committee meetings. The internal audit
review reports are then followed up by the management to ensure

that findings previously identified have been properly resolved.

The Board considers that the Group has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Group has established policy for ensuring that inside
information is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely
manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
Procedures such as limit access to inside information to those
who need to know and requiring external parties to execute
confidentiality agreement have been implemented by the
Company to guard against mishandling of inside information.
The Group also reminds those relevant personnel and other
professional parties to preserve confidentiality of the inside

information until it is publicly disclosed.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the fees paid or payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:

BB RERREYE CERSRRHEMH
FEREE -BURNZERRETEREE
ERE UERERZESEZ LM B
N EZREHEERBRE  UBREAEE
MBRERECZEHER-

EERAAEECHKEEERERAEES
Eﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ% L BRZEBRESY
EMNAEERREERADEHRFE 2B RME
R¥ME-

REECRBEE R ER AR S EBER UER
R FOE SR IBE REE R AR QF RIE R it )
DRRBM-ARNARATZHEREF  BIANRF
BRAFHEENATRERIRALEITRE W
S UBERTEREARBRE AEETRE
HEBAERAEMERZAT AR EERE E
ERMAPERL-

£ 8 6 BN &
RBE-B-BF=A=1+-BLFE BF
EERBETREZBURFELBRHC IR
NFRUM2BAMT :

Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEHE W (T#ER®T)
Audit services EZRTE 450
Non-audit services FBZRTE 138

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020



INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is also available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and

existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.gf-healthcare.com as
a communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s financial information and

other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, if

they have any enquires about their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company after each shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for convening general meetings by
shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings, and the shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above
in the paragraph headed “Procedures for convening general

meetings by shareholders” above.
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Pursuant to article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office. The
period for lodgment of the notices required will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the Company

may be given will be at least seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents

for the year.

Corporate Governance Report

ERERBE

RIBABZTEZMAESFK RIFE-—HEAERS
BEZUATRESNEEENUR —HZ
BWHEBATERRPEHESRREEBENC
ERXREADABPREENEMPERE - T R
BAT (REESHMN AREEARRAE
PEEHEESHEMN (RFAESHER) - EX
ZEBNHEARTEREEETZREEZ
BRAEESFTREAET RTERZRR
ARERTHEMALEER MEAARQIFHEZ
EEACHEPEARARL LR

BEXH
ARAZBEXHREF AL EETRE -

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £

43



44

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

DATE OF INCORPORATION

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May
2001 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as

consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services in the PRC. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 are set out in

the consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 75.

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company did not have any distributable reserves as at 31
March 2020 (2019: nil).
(Law 3 of 1961,

Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying

Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman

distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or dividend the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In accordance with the Articles of Association, dividends
shall be distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves,

including the share premium account, of the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group did not further invest in investment property during the

year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no individual customer has
contributed over 5% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the five largest customers in aggregate contributed to less

than 5% of the Group’s total revenue.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or shareholders that owned more than 5% of the issued shares
had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers of

the Group during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the largest supplier has
contributed to less than 10% of the Group's total purchases.
During the year, the five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed

to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or shareholders that owned more than 5% of the issued shares
had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest suppliers of

the Group during the year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and Shareholders. Employees are regarded as the most
important and valuable assets of the Group. The Group maintains
a good relationship with its employees and did not experience any
major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience any material
loss in manpower or suffer from any material labour dispute
during the year. The Group also understands the importance of
maintaining a good relationship with its suppliers and customers
to meet its short-term and long-term goals. It enjoys good
relationships with suppliers and customers and strives to take an

active part in the communities where they operate.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group's has adopted the green hospital development
policy and implemented low carbon strategies in all aspects
of operations in compliance with the requirements by the
government. The Group is committed to environmental protection
and energy conservation. In the course of investment, construction
and operation, the Group has consistently carried out the
operation objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace”
and focused on sustainable development. With reliability,
professional and safety as its objective, the Group possesses
advanced IT program management and technical support of
modern information network and strived to facilitate paperless

office and recycling.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group fully complies with all laws and regulations and
regularly monitors and gathers information about changes in
laws, rules and regulations relevant to the Group's businesses to
ensure the Group's observance of those applicable laws, rules and
regulations, especially those which may have material impact on
the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Chi Lung (Chairman)

Dr. Jiang Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zheng Gang

Non-executive Director:
Dr. Liu Chenli

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne

Dr. Lam Huen Sum

Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur

In accordance with article 86(3) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur, the independent non-executive Director,
will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the

forthcoming general meeting.

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Ng Chi Lung, the executive Director and Dr. Liu Chenli, the non-
executive Director, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming general meeting.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set on pages 23 to 26 of this report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Mr. Ng Chi Lung has been appointed as executive Director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 23 July 2018 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as chief executive officer by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 20 April 2015 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive Director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Chenli has been re-designated as a non-executive Director
by way of a new letter of appointment with the Company for a
period of one year commencing from 4 October 2019 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Dr. Lam Huen Sum has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 9 July 2018
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.
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Mr. Lau Tak Kei Arthur has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 4 October
2019 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Related party

transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2020.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not make
any charitable and other donations (2019: nil).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings by
directors of the Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of

the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
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(i) RELAFTRGRERKMGHZER:

Company:
Number Approximate
of shares and percentage
underlying of the total
Name of Director Nature of interest shares Position issued shares
HERT
B RERA . 3VE Y
EENR BaMHE Bin& A ) —§ i3 #Bivaask
Mr. Ng Chi Lung Corporate interest (Note) 1,680,459,460 Long 59.63%
REELE AEERE (MR L5}
Personal interest 59,000,000 Long 2.09%
AR Ba
Dr. Jiang Tao Personal interest 9,300,000 Long 0.33%
BEELT (PN #E
Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 6,044,000 Long 0.21%
R4 5 4 (EPN 3 #E
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(i)

(iii)

Note:

Solar Star Global Limited is interested in 1,581,959,460
shares and 98,500,000 convertible preference shares of
the Company. The issued share capital of Solar Star Global
Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Ng Chi Lung, 25% by
Ms. Ng Si Wing and 25% by Ms. Ng Yin. Mr. Ng Chi Lung
is deemed to be interested in the shares and the convertible
preference shares in which Solar Star Global Limited is
interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Interests in the issued share capital of the

Company’s associated corporation:

Name of

associated Capacity/
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MeE: EBERERBRABDRAEDF
1,581,959,4608% A% 19 ’ 98,500,000
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(i) RELFEBREEZERTREZ#E

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings

in the
associated
corporation’s

Number of issued share

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares  Position capital
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Nil

Interests in share options under share option

(i) WirEABNRTZMEERER:

schemes:
Number of
Exercise share options
Name of Director Exercise period price granted Position
Bz
EEkR fTiERA TER BiRENE S
Nil - - - -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, other than the interests of a director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above, the interests and short positions
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

MEXFIEEEN RZE_EF=A=1+—
B EBERADAEZTHAEBRERARLF
REFMEELIE(EXZRERSFRBERM
SEXVER) 2RI R DR EER P
BN RERSFRAEKRMHEI2REHR
AEFEzETMzEAESZSAE  ARE
GEM EWR A5 468567 BSTAERD
ARBRAZEMAERZIAE -

FERRREMREMKHZHER
Ri#kE

R-ZEBE-ZEF=A=+—-H BREX[EZEZRK
FETBAERRATREBE LB B
HEROREEE 2 EE | —BBEEAAT
EERFETHABZRERN UTALTRE
NAROEEBRDFEECHENBRBEESR
HERPIE3B6RBEHARTRFEZERMZ
BEREE:

Number of
shares/ Approximate
convertible percentage
preference of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HERT
B& {7 7] 4% B% BRipfE#Z
BRER ExEBuAE ' g% #raak
Solar Star Global Limited (Note 1) 1,680,459,460 Long Beneficial owner 59.63%
EBRREMR DT (M) Ha BERmEAA
Ms. Cheng Wai Yin (Note 2) 1,739,459,460 Long Interest of spouse 61.72%
BEEzt+ (KiEE2) Ly P B A x5
New Hope International (Hong Kong) 343,217,539 Long Beneficial owner 12.18%
Limited (Note 3)
HHELER (BEB)BRAA L3y BEREAA
(M=E3)
Southern Hope Enterprise Co., Ltd.* 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 12.18%
(Note 3)
MAHLEXERAF (MEE3) Ha NGIE 3
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Number of
shares/ Approximate
convertible percentage
preference of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HEBT
B& {7 7] 4% B% BRin#E#z
KEREWE EERBAE g3 7 ghaak
New Hope Group Co., Ltd.* 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 12.18%
(Note 3)
FREEBERAA (MEE3) e DA
Tibet Hengye Feng Industrial 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 12.18%
Co., Ltd.* (Note 3)
AREXEHEEXERAAF (ME3) Ly NEIRERE
Mr. Liu Yonghao (Note 3) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 12.18%
2K 57 & (KIEE3) Ly NEIRERE
Ms. Liu Chang (Note 3) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 12.18%
245 2+ (HIEE3) #e NEIRERE
Ms. Li Wei (Note 4) 343,217,539 Long Interest of spouse 12.18%
ZH L+ (MisEs) Ly TR
Notes: I EE -

(1) Solar Star Global Limited is interested in 1,581,959,460 shares and
98,500,000 convertible preference shares of the Company. The

issued share capital of Solar Star Global Limited is owned as to 50%
by Mr. Ng Chi Lung, 25% by Ms. Ng Si Wing and 25% by Ms. Ng
Yin. Mr. Ng Chi Lung is deemed to be interested in the shares and

the convertible preference shares in which Solar Star Global Limited

is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

(2)  Ms. Cheng Wai Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ng Chi Lung. Ms. Cheng
Wai Yin is deemed to be interested in the shares and the convertible

preference shares in which Mr. Ng Chi Lung is interested in under

Part XV of the SFO.

EBRRIER D ARA D E1,581,959,4608
% 9 1% 98,500,000/ A2 RRB L IR R B #
@ EBRRERATZERITRAARERE
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25%K25%  IRIEFEF REBEHRAEXVE R
FELEFERAREGRRERAAEGER
ZRORITERELRPEEER
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HERGIEXVE BEEZ L WRARRES
TEBERECRORTRRELRPEERE
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(3)  New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited ("New Hope
International”) is interested in 343,217,539 shares of the
Company. The issued share capital of New Hope International is
owned as to 75% by Southern Hope Enterprise Co., Ltd.* which
is in turn owned as to 51% by New Hope Group Co., Ltd.” and as
to 49% by Tibet Hengye Feng Industrial Co., Ltd.* Both New Hope
Group Co., Ltd.* and Tibet Hengye Feng Industrial Co., Ltd.* are
owned as to 62.34% by Mr. Liu Yonghao, as to 36.35% by Ms. Liu
Chang and as to 1.31% by Ms. Li Wei. Mr. Liu Yonghao and Ms.
Liu Chang are deemed to be interested in the shares in which New
Hope International is interested in.

(4)  Ms. Li Wei is the spouse of Mr. Liu Yonghao. Ms. Li Wei is deemed
to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Liu Yonghao is interested
in under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or of any other body corporate granted to any directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors, their respective spouse or children under 18

years of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associated
companies, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate at any time during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
As at 31 March 2020, there was no outstanding share option.

The Company had adopted the share option scheme on 10

August 2011,

and the terms of which are in accordance with the

provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The following

is a summary of the principal terms of the share option scheme:

(A) Purpose of the share option scheme

(B)

The purpose of purpose of the share option scheme is to
enable the Company to grant share options to the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) in order to recognise and
motivate the contribution of the employees of the Group
and to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining its
existing employees and recruiting additional employees and
to provide them with a direct economics interest in attaining

the long term business objectives of the Group.

Participants of the share option scheme
The participants (the "Eligible Participants”) of the share
option scheme shall be any employee of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or

may contribute to the Group.
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©

(D)

(E)

(F)

Total number of shares available for issue under
the share option scheme

Under the share option scheme, the total number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the share option scheme and
any other share option scheme of the company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the number of the issued shares
as at 17 August 2015, being the date of the annual general
meeting of the Company refreshing the scheme mandate
limit, which allowed the Directors to grant share options to
subscribe for up to 169,876,994 shares of the Company,
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the

shareholders of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total of
169,876,994 shares available for issue under the share
option scheme, represents approximately 6.03% of the

issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the share option scheme

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the
share option scheme in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the options must not exceed

1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under a share option

The period during which a share option may be exercised
is determined by the Board at its discretion, save that such
period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of

grant.

The minimum period for which a share option
must be held before it can be exercised
As determined by the Board upon the grant of a share

option.

©

(D)

(E)

(F)
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(G)

(H)

U

The amount payable on acceptance of a share
option and the period within which payments
shall be made

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$10.00 is
payable by the grantee upon acceptance of a share option,
where the grantee should accept or decline the offer of
grant of a share option within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not later

than 28 days from the date upon which it is made.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
share option granted under the share option scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event will not be less than the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share on
the date of grant.

The remaining life of the share option scheme
The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 10 August 2011, being the adoption
date, until 9 August 2021.

(G)

(H)

U]
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for (i) the share option scheme adopted on 10 August
2011; (ii) the 98,500,000 non-redeemable convertible preference
shares allotted and issued in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreement dated 13 November 2009, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 March 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on
page 204. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain transactions which are undertaken in the normal course of
business, are also disclosed as related party transactions (see Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements), but none of which
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected

transaction pursuant to Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 8 November 2018,

which sets out the approach in recommending dividends, to
allow the Shareholders to participate in the Group's profits and
for the Group to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the Group's current and future operations,
financial position, development pipeline, prevailing economic
environment, contractual restrictions, capital and other reserve
requirements, dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates, as well as any other conditions or factors which
the Board deems relevant. The form, frequency and amount of
dividend payment by the Company are subject to any restrictions
under the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands and any other laws and regulations applicable

to the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 8 November 2018, which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
integrity, management experience, technical skills, industry or
professional knowledge and experience. All Board appointments
are based on meritocracy, and candidates are considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity

on the Board.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group
had achieved board diversity for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board had adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 8 November 2018, which sets out the approach to
determine the nomination of Directors, the procedure, process
and criteria to be adopted for the purposes of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, and shall make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular, the chairman of the Board and the chief executive

officer.

The Company considered that, in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the nomination committee of the Board may
make reference to certain criteria, including but not limited to, the
experience in the Company principal business and/or the industry
in which the Company operates, balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board, and various aspects set out in the Board

Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the Nomination Policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Board has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience required for the

business of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,
qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policy of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the percentage of the shares which are in hands of the
public exceeds 25% of the total number of issued shares as at the
date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD
Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are

set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statement.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was
in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this report. The above section form part of this

Directors’ Report.

REVIEW OF THE FINAL RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Group's audited consolidated financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Chi Lung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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BT &6 EH A R G
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 72 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditors’ Report
v
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Independent Auditors’ Report
v

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Key audit matter

MEEHER

Impairment assessment on goodwill

BB R E R

Refer to Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

F2HRAMBRERMT20R21

The Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$6,108,000 relating to provision of general
hospital services in the PRC as at 31 March 2020.
The management performed impairment assessment
on goodwill allocated to each cash generating units
and concluded that impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$13,985,000 was recognised.
RZZZZEF=ZA=+—RH " EBESEEEBERNPTEREH
mEMERRE BB %6,108,0008 T - EEECD H
PTEREXRTELEEVNBHEETRENML LEEHS
A ERERE13,9850008 7T

This conclusion was based on value-in-use model
that required significant management judgement
with respect to the discount rate and the underlying
cashflows, in particular future revenue growth and
capital expenditure. Independent external valuation
were obtained in order to support management'’s
estimates.

ZEwmIERNEREEREMEL  ZREERGET
FERHEBRERE LHERARPBERRERFX
REREEREHEH AXFEERENME EREBILH
B E -

Independent Auditors’ Report
v

How our audit address the key audit matter

EFETEHRNMERREEHER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on goodwill included:

FHEEE - mBRENGZRFEE:

o Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
assumption and methodologies used in the
calculation.

e RBEGMESERFETERERANBRRELE.

o Evaluation of management independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectively;

e FEEEBVMEMNES EIRFEHML:

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using
our valuation experts;

o FHMEFIEAMAEURENBETEINERFA
HEEREFHNEIERINBEE

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumption based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

e EREAREMEUXEBRITXEIEBMELNEIER
BRHWEEM R

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o MEMERERMABBNERERAREMK-

We found the assumptions, methodologies, the
judgement and estimates of the management were
supported by available evidence.
BPRREEBNEBRR KA AHRMEARASERS
P $Fe
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Independent Auditors’ Report
v

Key audit matter
REFEHER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
("PPE")
MR - BERRM (MR - WERRM])ME

Refer to notes 16 to the consolidated financial
statements

F2RGSMB|RM 16

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$80,328,000,
which mainly comprised machinery and equipment of
approximately HK$7,548,000, leasehold improvements
of approximately HK$7,537,000 and construction in
progress of approximately HK$60,346,000. We focused
on this area because the balance of property, plant
and equipment was significant and these assessment
process is complex and highly subjective which based
on the selection of appropriate comparables and
assumptions such as discount rate and future revenue.
The Group engaged an external valuer to perform the
valuation for the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment.

R-ZZ-ZF=RA=+—-H EEBEEY* KE
R ##80,328,0008 T HEIEBFEHRBERREBY
7,548,00078 T - MEW X £ 47,537,000/8 T R EE
T##60,346,000/8 T - RMBE N2 BB ZEERY
X HBERRB2ERERN MZETHBE (ERE
MAEENLERHEBEREBRSR NTEERRARRKE) EH
ReEXH  SEECHEFIMNEGEEMETYE K
EREBREATHRESE 2 HEIE-

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ESETEHSNARESSEIR

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

FHEEEEZRENGZRFRE:

o Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
assumption and methodologies used in the
calculation.

. REHEERIEHERERNBRRI L

o Evaluation of management independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e MEEEBNMEMNELE -EIRFEMK

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry, and using
our valuation experts;

o  FEAFERAMNAEURERMBETENERRA
FEEREFENETERENEE M

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

e HBEREMREKMUEXBRTEAAMELNEEZER
RHEEE R

o Checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o MEMERERMABBNERERABEMN-

We found that the assumptions made by management
for impairment assessment were supported by the
available evidence.

EMBREEEMBENGEFE ZBRRETESELT
e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Independent Auditors’ Report
v
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Independent Auditors’ Report
v
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Tien Sun Kit, Jack.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tien Sun Kit, Jack
Practising Certificate Number: P07364

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEBEaRAEMEERZER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

, 2019
== —B-AF
Note HK$'000
Mt & FET
Revenue |1} 4= 7 326,926
Cost of sales HERXE (184,123)
Gross profit X 142,803
Other revenue Hfth U & 746
Other loss and gain, net HitEsiE R s F48E 25
Provision of impairment loss recognised A& 5 & Hth BN FRIEFER
in respect of trade and other receivable ZB{EEBEE (2,323)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWB AR Z W mFEE 15 746
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (67,016)
Administrative expenses TEHX (85,005)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair R A FEFTABZ 2
value through profit or loss cTREEZATEER 19 (867)
Impairment loss on goodwill EmEREEE 20 (32,214)
Loss on early redemption of REBEHALEEZEE
promissory note (1,424)
Loss from operations BEXBEGE (44,529)
Finance costs B E 10 (1,536)
Loss before taxation iR A8 11 (46,065)
Taxation B 12 (4,252)
Loss for the year AEEERE (50,317)
Loss for the year attributable to: BEFEESR:
Owners of the Company KABEBA (50,356)
Non-controlling interests FERER 39
Loss for the year EEEEBR (50,317)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SeBRmRkRAtEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

2019
—E-NEF
Note HK$'000
Mt 5 FHET
Other comprehensive loss for the TEEREMBEER
year
ltems that may be reclassified HeEnwEHoEEZEE2
subsequently to profit or loss: BE:
Exchange differences on translating BREBIKEEB =
foreign operations fENZEZE (12,522)
ltems that were reclassified to profit B EEEHRZ
or loss: EA :
Release of exchange differences upon A HEK B A 7 EE
disposal of subsidiaries BEHELE (8,636)
Other comprehensive loss for the TEEHM2EESE  MRRE
year, net of tax (21,158)
Total comprehensive loss TEERXEERASE
for the year (71,475)
Total comprehensive loss BEXEEREGIREE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company EUNETE 2N (68,182)
Non-controlling interests FERER (3,293)
(71,475)
Loss per share attributable EANFEE AEWS
to owners of the Company BERER
— Basic and diluted - BEAREE (SREW)
(HK cents per share) 14 (1.79)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BRI &R

Asat31 March 2020 R=ZE=-_FEF=H=+—H

i

”/ Note
Mt 5E
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRERZE 16
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17
Deposit for property, ME-BERZEZES
plant and equipment 18
Goodwill RS 20
Finance lease receivables W mERERE 24
Current assets mENEE
Inventories 7E 22
Trade and other receivables EZREMEWRIER
and deposits "e 23
Finance lease receivables EWEERERE 24
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZZ
through profit or loss cRMEE 19
Cash and cash equivalents RekRREZLEEER 25
Current liabilities mENRR
Trade and other payables BES R HEAMEMNRIE 26
Lease liabilities HEEE 27
Amounts due to FEAFEEERR IR 3R 2 X8
non-controlling shareholders 28
Tax payables A BLIE
Net current assets mEEERE
Total assets less current liabilities HAEHERTDAR

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020
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HK$'000
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20,093

61,913

8,150

34,437

2,072
126,830

171,489

61,901
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ra B SR R &

As at 31 March 200 A—E=-ZEF=H=+—8H

2019
—E-NF
Note HK$'000
MIEE FET
Non-current liabilities ERDAR
Deferred Revenue EFE U A 30 23,387
Lease liabilities HEESE 27 -
23,387
Net assets HERE 147,610
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BEER G
Share capital [N 38 29,168
Reserves e 39 102,644
Equity attributable to owners ToEEAEAREMGRES
of the Company 131,812
Non-controlling interests JEERRER 15,798
Total equity BawE 147,610

The consolidated financial statements were approved and HAUBREANR-_ZE-_ZEZFA+IERES
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2020 EMERFEETER THTIHIEEARES:
and signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Tao Ng Chi Lung BE RERE
Director Director EZE ZZE

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BHHMETAZEREMBRRZ—HBD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
HEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EVEL PN 1
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital Other Special Translation payment Statutory  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub Total interests equity
L]
ERe
k% RAER REER AftRR RHER ERER fIRER HERR 2HER it FERRE Raun
HK§000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL TR TR TR T -7 THL THL THL THL TR TR

Asat 1 April 2018 H=F-NEMA-B 29,168 440,89 295,610 551 (6,735) 19,628 16,469 15,802 (609,947) 200,835 50472 251307
Loss for the year REERE - - - - - - - - (50,356) 50,36) 39 (50317)
Other comprefensive loss or the year, REERM2EEE NBHE
net of tax
Exchange diference on tranglating AESNERENZE
foreign operations - - - - - (9,190) - - - (9,190) (333) (12522)
Release of exchange diferences upon HEWRAERER 28R
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (8,636) - - - (8636) - (8,636)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERANALE - - - - - (17,826) - - (50,356) (68,182) (3293 (11.475)
Transfer to satutory reserve BRTIRRE - - - - - - - 670 (670) - - -
Disposal of subsidiares (Note 15) LEREAT (K1) - - - - (66,160) - - (12,250 78412 - (32220 (32200
Deregstraton of subsidiartes R P - - - - 41,580 - - - (w41 841) 841 -
Lapse of share option BRELN - - - - - - (16,469) - 16,469 - - -
At1 April 2019 RZF-LEMA-B 29,168 440,289 295,610 551 (31315 1,802 - 4200 (608,513) 131812 15,798 147,610
Loss for the year REERE - - - - - - - - (49,504) (49,504) (7,300 (56,804)
Other comprehensive loss or the year, REERMREEE NBHE
net of tax
Exchange diference on tranglating AESNERZENZE
foreign operations - - - - - (2,570) - - - (2,570) (1,134 (3,704)
Release of exchange diferences upon HEWRAERER£HER
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - 2313 - - - 2313) - 2313
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERANALE - - - - - (4,883) - - 49,504) (54,387) (8434) (62,821)
Transfer to satutory reserve BRTIRRE - - - - - - - % (26) - - -
Disposal of subsidiares (Note 15) LENEAT (K1) - - - - - - - (3.073) 301 - (13,02) (13,002)
As at 31 March 2020 RZB-BEZAZ1-H 29,168 440,289 295,610 551 (31,315) (3,081) - 1173 (654,970) 77,425 (5,658) 71,767
Notes: MizE :

(@)  The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences (a) EIAREECELENRESBRNZELZHBER

arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations KMEEZMBEINEZLE - ZFEEDREBEWE
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the SFE 2SR MERE -

accounting policies set out in Note 3.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZF=ZHA=+—HLFE

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange the grant of the relevant
options over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The amount is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.

The share-based payment reserve which is expired would be released
directly to retained profits.

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors and
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase

capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

(b)

R AER 2 HHFEERRINEREE
HAFE P9 3K AR B BB AR HE T ik BT S T W ER 2 AR
Bz TPE HBHDUBRENMIHAS 2
DNTEAFTHEELE - ZEHEERARETIRLR
THEER X - AR FEIE A0 DA BR 10 5 B 1 2 A TR A
e

DR RER 2 AREEERRSEERNE
REBEFR o

REFEARKNME (THE HEERRE
B2 HRE - BB AR AL 2 AN A B B B R R
H10%BREMRBEERGREES (BR3F
REEHRCEENBLIBREARZ50%) °
FEZSREABEBRNERMER  REESE
AAEEERTERESIEMEAR -

H?

Bz HERZEREMBHRER 2 —BD -

4
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEeRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

” Note
Fff &F
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BERBZHARE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation MR AR I
Adjustments for: FEIER
Bank interest income RITRBERWA 8
Interest expenses FEBX 10
Amortisation of prepaid FENEERIE S
lease payments
Depreciation of property, ME BERZEITE
plant and equipment 16
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEIE 17
Fair value loss on financial assets BRAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SMEEZATFEESE 19
Loss on early redemption REBOACZEBZEE
of promissory note
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE BRERZREZ
plant and equipment &B (Km) 9
Loss on written off property, WHEME - BER
plant and equipment HE2EE 9
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB ARz W& 15
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 21
Impairment loss recognised in respect 2 5 & H b fE UL FRE
of trade and other receivables and URZEEHER
deposits Z R EEE 23
Operating cash flows before movements &EE & B a2 K&
in working capital REeERE
Increase in inventories FEEM
Increase in trade and other receivables 5 Rk HMEWRRER
and deposits REEM
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 Kk H{th S FRIFIZ N
Increase in deferred revenue I FIE Ui 25 2 AN

Decrease in amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders

Net cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

FE A 3F 422 IR IR 3R 2 SR IR R

EBASREFE
BB HATEH

REXBRBEREFHE

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET

(46,065)

(469)
1,536
827

22,669

867

1,424

(128)

(746)
32,214

2,323

14,452
(3,889)

(45,216)
38,050
23,387

(407)

26,377
(5,467)

20,910



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 @E —E=—FEF=ZA=+—HILLFE

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET

Note
B &

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in deposits paid for property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in finance lease receivables

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal
of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Repayment of promissory notes
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end E¥ZH & RS EEHIEH

of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

RETBZREAE

=&

BEWE BERRE
ME-BERREBEH

BEE M

FEW R EHERERD

HEMBARRE

CRE) RAFE
HENE BERREZ

FRi§FRIR

REES (FFA) 5

BEFHE

METBZRELE

EHAE
B T
B EEE
IR T 3K

REFHMAREFR

ReRBEEFERE

WY BRE

FMZzHeRAEFERE

SNEEREH

B
4

469
(14,168)

(405)

46,856

264

33,016

(2,705)
(45,000)

(9,355)

(57,060)

(3,134)

132,283

(2,319)

126,830

BEMf 2 AR ERAMBHRRZ -8B -

TREREEAMRLTF 2019/2020 F3#

719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 May 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The shares of the Company are listed on GEM ("GEM")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Solar Star
Global Limited and ultimate controlling party is Mr. Ng Chi
Lung, who is also the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company. The registered office of the Company is Second
Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902 Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands (with effect on 1 April
2020). The head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Unit 3309, 33rd Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road,
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional currency of
the Company, and the functional currency of most of its
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“"RMB"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of HK$
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Company has applied, for the first
time, the following new and amendments to HKFRS and
interpretations (“new and amendments to HKFRSs") issued
by the HKICPA, which are effective for the Company's
financial year beginning 1 April 2019. A summary of the

new and amendments to HKFRSs are set out as below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKAS 19 (Amendments)  Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvement to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, for the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

FERMETE &M B ERESER
(EEMBREEN]) RE
131K

RAFE  RRAFACEXRERATIHESR
S AERM 2T EBMBHREE
AR HETAUR2E ([ EBME

EEARHEBITAR]) ZFEARE
BORARAR-ZZF-NFHNA—AHR
WM RFEER - BBUBREE
AR EETAZBREAINT

BEMBHREEN HE

E16%

BB (ARUBRE FEHEEZTREY

REZEYE)

-REE23H%

BEMBREELN REERBUEREHE

LA HEN)

BEGERE 9% BT EHREE

(B3 %)

ERGTERERY RABEAARAELRR

(153 %) REER

ERMBHREELN BEUBKREED

(BETA) “E-RER-F—tF
BHzFENE

BRUAT &SN RAFERAE BB

EEAZEBITAEREEAREFER
BEFEZBBRRRMRERRRZ
EHEUBRRAFMEZRBEERNALE
EAZE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") - continued
HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS

17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed

contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial

application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
April 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in

accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in

assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 16 Leases - continued

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with

the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to
the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i)  elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for lease term ends within 12 months of the
date of initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(iii) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment;

(iv) relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment
review;

(v)  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
option.

LEEE P TR T
(THEMBEEER]) RRE
SESE

EEMBREENSE 16T &
EHEBEA
AEBMCEHERBEBVEREERS
16N RERBE -2 —NFN
B—BRRAAFTE-

RZZ—NAFMA—A REERBEH
FE A & 78 B 7% 3R 5 2E Bl 551 68% C8(b)(ii) A
HEEEaE S ERAEMI A
EEBERFERAREE -RYKEAAHZ
FNEZERPVEERAERARLERE
B EES o

ENBERRBEEBUBBEEAFE 6
TRERESCEN L AR AKEHBER
BEBEHENFITRIBEALERY
ZHEE UBREEECER L EEAWN
HESWHBREENERAUTRESRR:

() EEHHBEVREABH12EA
ARECHETESRAEAREE
rEEAE,

(i) RAOWEABHTEERAEEER
MR I8 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 16 Leases - continued

As a lessee - continued

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 7.5% to 10.0%.

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in Note 34 as at 31 March 2019
to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at
1 April 2019:

FERMITEEMB RS ER
(TEEMBEREEN]) RHEE
RE—1

FREMBEBEENE16MER &
EREBEA-#E
ERBAEIEAKERY cHERIE
ERER AREEAEBEEEERRY
MERRHZEERER FREEERE

ERzMEFHEERERNFIS%E
10.0% °
TREIR-Z-NAF=ZA=1T—-HHZE

MU BEC EEHEARER-T -
FHA-RRIAZEEEBENPIE
iR

HK$'000
FET
Operating lease commitment disclosed E’\\‘Zi hWE=ZA=+—BEEZ
as at 31 March 2019 EHERIE 147,263
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental RHBEZEEEEN XU RNEEASRE
borrowing rates 144,890
Less: Recognition exemption-short term lease HWoRRHMe-EPEE (177)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 RZE-HhFNA—-HZHEERE 144,713
Analysed as: pali =
Current lease liabilities REHESRE 24,802
Non-current lease liabilities IRBEEEE 119,911
144,713
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases - continued

As a lessee - continued

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in

the statement of consolidated financial position at 1 April
2019.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from
the date of initial application and comparative information

has not been restated.

Subleases

At the date of initial application, leased properties under
subleases were assessed and classified as an operating
lease or a finance lease individually based on the remaining
contractual terms and conditions of the head lease and the
sublease at that date. All leased properties under subleases
of HK$11,708,000 as at the date of initial application were

classified as finance leases.

FERMITEEMB RS ER
(TEEMBEREEN]) RHEE
RE—1

FREMBEBEENE16MER &
EREBEA-#E
ERPBEREERECHERBEERE
EECEMESRHGTHERENCER
CHEZTERD TRER-Z-LFN
A—BZzGAUBRRAERBERZ2EESR
BzEMANREFHENRESEET

HE o

i

ESHAA
EREBMBRELEAE16RBERI
AEEBARAKEESHBAAZEE
BEFHARZ HEAMEENNKERAR
HREE BN BHRELAE16RAR B
HHBREHWEED -

a8

RMKRERBE 2HEBTHHEHEYE
REZANTHERIHENKRTEHK
MRGHEBIRALSBEAKERER
MERAE RYKRERBHSHESET
11,708,000 T AT B EMEW DB
RAREEHRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) — continued
HKFRS 16 Leases - continued
Subleases — continued
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use and
those under subleases (classified as finance lease receivables)

as at 1 April 2019 comprises the following:

FERMITEEMB RS ER
(TEEMBEREEN]) RHEE
RE—1

FEMBHEENE16MER &
SH-\
REZZE-NFHOA-—BEFEBRANER
BREERSHAETHNEREEE (D ES
FEURMEEERE) WREAESFELT S
I8

Right-of-use Finance lease

assets receivables

FE U e
EREEE HAEREA
HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating EHERERBEMKREEA
leases recognised upon application of FIRBACHEIANKCEREN
HKFRS 16 EHEEE 144,713 -
Derecognised the right-of-use assets relating #ARIEFRFAEERESHEZ
to the head lease that is transfers to the FTHEEBENEREEER
sub-lease and recognised a finance lease BREKRERERE
receivables (11,708) 11,708
133,005 11,708

Effective 1 April 2019, a leased offices which were
recognised as a right-of-use asset upon application of
HKFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as intermediate
lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHIIEEMEHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERMBHREEN])REE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HIE b |

("HKFRSs") - continued

As a lessor — continued EEHIBA—1E

Subleases - continued SH-#&

TREMRANBT BB RELERF 1657
R-ZZE-NAFHNA-BHAKERSY
BURRENTE - REXEHFE 2EE

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not

affected by the changes have not been included. W ABIEERA
Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 March 1 April
2019 Adjustments 2019
RIE—I%F
RIE—-I%F A—BH#RE
=A=+—H TEUMBRE
BEZED #RIE 163K MY
REE W REE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET THET FHET
Line items in the REMBERRRAZER
consolidated statement A& 8 B 75 3R & 2E A
of financial position FI6EEMNIER ¢
impacted by the
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-uses assets FRAEEE - 133,005 133,005
Finance lease receivables MEWBMERERE - 7,600 7,600
Current assets mENEE
Finance lease receivables FEW B & & FIE - 4,108 4,108
Current liabilities mERE
Lease liabilities HEEE - 24,802 24,802
Non-current liabilities JERBI& R
Lease liabilities HE&E - 119,911 119,911

SREEEMARAT 2019/2020 5% 87
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) — continued
New and amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of a Material

(Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sales or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HKRFS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Benchmark Reform’

HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions®
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") - continued

New and amendments of HKFRSs that have been

issued but not yet effective - continued

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,

a revised “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting”

was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendment, the

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework

in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application

of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

FEEHHRREER

aRnEn
REMBBRRDREBVBRELENR
B OEBUBREENAGHE HEBES
BEIMASEAZMEERMBERNES
MEREEA FERGHERN([EES
FPEA ) KRR GEMBRRE
FEGEME S EmR A ([GEM LA RI])
ROGMED (BB EMIE22E) 2K &
REMBREZFMEBHERARKE-

RRENEEBYBREER 2GR HER
REEZEEEBFUAE AT RBR M
BRFE A RBREFEREZER
REE BB WARIHZ2®REAHE-
A REEBRRDERELERRERE
BREATRASEZEBEEMEAZMAE
o B R AE ACH T R BE AR E A SRR B B
AR zEERERERAEZER -BRE
RABEBERRZEMET-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Statement of compliance - continued

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group in the preparation of the financial statements is set

out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except for
certain financial assets that are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

of given in exchange for assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation - continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
sharebased payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued
3 rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Change in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or a jointly venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a prorate
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Group’s unconditional right to consideration,

In contrast, a receivable represents the
i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Service income — general healthcare services

For the revenue recognised according to the measure of
hospital service rendered as this is the point in time that the
portion that the group has obtained the unconditional rights

to consideration is recognised as accounts receivable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless

such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-

lease components as a single lease component.

3.

FEEMHRRBE &

HE (REBME2MRGZBRZHEM
EREEMBEEENEI6MHEE)
HAMER
HENBBRBMAEmNS TE - REERX
EHEBEERANERN IZENE
REBEHEE-

BREXER BN 2RT ML HIERR
BEEBESHNSHAMS  AKERESR
BMBHRELRF1RNERNEE &
FTEMERE RS (MER)FEZEN
EEBRABESHE BRFESHNIRRK
RUEERHBRZE TAFESHOKTT
ERE R

FREESEEA

HRIED B EE XKD
HREs—EHHEEANT I R —EHZ
HEMESFHEARTOINELN &
SERBEHASARBINELHERER
RFHEARBONERERANKS
H(BREWBEESHERFEEETAR
BONYERERESNEN)RESE
EREEEAKRBD  MHEZDETRERSE
YEHBRSN

AEBTRAANTEER A TH¥FEE
AR REEERBIEDIFE MR
SEESARBE REMEFEFESEAK
BoER-—EEBNWHEHEAK 7 ET
N3

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £

99



100

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2&!

VA AN

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

- continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received,;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms

and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

- continued

Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the

cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES - continued
Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)
- continued
Lease liabilities - continued
o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

J the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

J the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Lease liabilities — continued

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS ERAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

- continued

As a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract

is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct
costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate

of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in

respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

- continued

Sublease

Finance lease interest income on the net investment in the
sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head

lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the

new lease.

Finance lease interest income on the net investment in the
sublease is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Leases (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019) - continued

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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In the event that lease incentives are received to enter MK EHERNESHERE BZE
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a REBEAREE RBNWAREHIZEAR

liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which

they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as
follows:
Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

- continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Nonmonetary items carries at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

J exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies — continued

For the purpose of presenting the Financial Information, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each of the Track Record Period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences

arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.

Provisions

Provisions recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions of any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.

3.

FEEMHRRBE &

ERER
rEEERFE FERE THFR
BARERERFEREN ZRATIR
AEBEESREHEBRRE 2 HERRG -
LB N REE  UBHEALE B
BHERBEAZHBREIR

REZBEFME LB ERMANEE
FHzBEMEAREHRAUARBAEH
BHEEZEEFHZEARERRKE
MFEMIT DRELEREREBRERE
bz EWEREID/FX -

BRENRASEAKEREXREHE
BEREZTEcEE TR  WAEXR
TEER SR AN BEERMRERENET
LAHERR

RERRTEDRARENE - Bt
AEERBLER (Flanp Bt ReTE)
XNEEER MiHEAESLESER
HEEUAXNEABBRBEHE2E
ERBEABZAERERF  AAKEL
BEERHEEEEUAINE-SHR X
SEHRERRGFEZEHRDIRERZ
BMBFEERNER -

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the binominal lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair value of
share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which the

costs are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: — continued

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner. A transaction is considered to be a
related party transaction when there is a transfer of
resources and obligations between related parties.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

J the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value though profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EX®HHBEHE-—1&

POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued eMIR-#&

Financial assets — continued EMEE &

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEZ P BERAZTE—E

assets — continued

A financial asset is held for trading if: HMBTHER eMEEDIEAFEER
=

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e WEZETRMEEZAENEERERT

selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of o

identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or
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a hedging instrument. AEMEREFTIA
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial A A< 62 B °] A A B 1 6 28 1R 1 8 A
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost AHAERRATEEBEHMEAKES
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or RetmEEETRERATEEBESR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the

determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other

gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
other receivable, deposits and finance lease receivables. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

J significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 180 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit— impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets — continued

Credit-impaired financial assets — continued

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
aconcession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forwardlooking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as

the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1
January 2019).

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade

receivables are each assessed as a separate group);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar

credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and other receivables and finance lease receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and amount due to non-controlling interests) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received. Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognized in profit

or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €MTH
Categories of financial instruments EMIRRM
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEFAEBRzEMEE
profit or loss 2,072
At amortised cost: R
— trade and other receivables and deposits —ZZREMERFERIZRS 30,789
— finance lease receivables —EUmEHERIEA -
— cash and cash equivalent -BEeRBRELEEEB 126,830
Financial liabilities R AR
At amortised cost: RS AN
— trade and other payables -E S RHEMESKIE 61,901
— amount due to non-controlling shareholder — FE4s JE 12 IR IR SR FR 18 180
— lease liabilities —-HE&E -
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEESRERBER
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEBCEKAHSEMERR: 5
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest Ek (BEEEERR BRERKEFER
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall ) FERRRRBESAR -AKE
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability CEREREESREENRERIN
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential MG BREHRNEBEG BUR 278
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The ERAZERZERER EEEBEERER
management manages and monitors these exposures to ZERK BRURKERZEXERE
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely BT o

and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

(a)

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and

interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity

analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective subsidiaries. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

4, &I A&
HERBETEEERBFK @&

(a)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

(a)

Market risk — continued

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair

value measurement categorised within Level 1.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2019:
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
increase/decrease by HK$71,000 (2019:
decrease by HK$207,000) as a result of the changes in

10%) higher/lower, the post-

increase/

fair value of investments at FVTPL.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no bank borrowings and promissory
note at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no any significant
interest rate risk during the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances and deposits, trade receivables, and deposit
and other receivables and finance lease receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31 March 2020 and
2019.

In respect of the deposits, other receivables and
finance lease receivables, the credit quality has been
individual assessed by general approach with reference
to historical information about the counterparties
default rate range from 0% to 32.14% and financial
position of the counterparties. The Group recognised
the allowance for expected credit losses by assessing
the credit risk characteristics of deposit, other
receivables and finance lease receivables, discount rate
and the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions. During the year end 31
March 2020, the Group net provision of the allowance
for the expected credit loss related to the deposits,
other receivables and finance lease receivables was
amount of HK$79,000 (2019:HK$2,647,000)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.

4., &MTITAR-&
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(b)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers, historical

settlement records and past experience.

The Group, being a provider of general healthcare
services to patients, has a highly diversified customer
base, without any single customer contributing
material revenue. However, the Group has
concentrated debtors portfolio, as majority patients
will claim their medical bills from governments’
social insurance schemes. Certain patients’ costs
will be reimbursed by other government bodies. The
reimbursement from these organisations may take one
to six months. The Group has policy in place to ensure
the treatments and medicines prescribed and provided
to such insured patients are in line with respective
organisations’ policies and within reimbursement limits,
provided fulfilling all ethics and moral responsibilities
as healthcare provider. The Group also has controls to
closely monitor the patients’ billings and claim status to
minimum the credit risk. For those balance not covered
by social insurance scheme, the management assessed

the collectability based on historical patterns and data.

As at the end of the year, the top five debtors
accounted for approximately Nil% (2019: 83.7%)
of the Group's trade receivables balance. In view of
the history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade receivable
disclosed in the below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

- continued

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
do not provide any impairment allowance for trade
receivables (2019: HK$1,666,000), based on the

provision matrix.

Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing
As at 31 March 2019

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 4. &I A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBREEARRBE &
- continued
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EERIERREERFG &

BE-Z-ZTFE=-A=+—-HLHEF
B AEEIBRIEBEERERE
SREWREFREMBERE (=
Z— N5 :1,666,000/87T) °

FR 1 AE (7 — JE W AR 5 AR e

RZE-hh&F=A=+—H

Average  Gross carrying Loss

Loss rate amount allowance

FigHERE IRE#AE 155 48 1% O

% HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current (not past due) BOER (AREEHR) 8.9 2,163 195
1 - 90 days 1290K 61.1 414 253
91 - 180 days 91&180K 83.9 81 68
Over 180 days past due  HIEIEB180K 100.0 1,150 1,150
3,808 1,666

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forwardlooking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 4. EMIR-#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBREEARRBE &
- continued
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EERBRAEFME—E&
- continued
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables R-ZEBE-EFR-Z-NF=A

and other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
March 2020 and 2019 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

=t-BZEZRBYWHERZEE
BAGECHMERMEE 2HRE
BEREEHVOBEERBE YR

T:
Deposit,
Trade other
receivables receivables
Bme-
g5 Hth
FE Uit 2R IR B HIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET
At 1 April 2018 R-ZZE-—NFMA—H 1,996 9,714
Provision/(reversal) of loss allowance FAREBRBRZER
recognised in profit or loss BE (BE)FE
during the year, net (324) 2,647
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QR (6) (9,714)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE-NAF=ZRA=+—HEK
—E-hFWMA—H 1,666 2,647
Provision of loss allowance recognised FARAREZERZ
in profit or loss during the year, net EEEE TR - 79
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLR (1,666) (244)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZBZZEF=ZA=+—H - 2,482
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued
(c) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities as well
as derivative and certain non-derivative financial assets
which are included in the maturity analysis provided
internally to the key management personnel for the
purpose of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative
financial assets, the tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the
financial assets including interest that will be earned
on those assets except where the Group anticipates
that the cash flow will occur in a different period. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables reflect the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.

4., &MTITAR-&
HERBETEEERBFK @&

(c)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 4. &@MIR-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREERERERBK &
- continued
(c) Liquidity risk management - continued () HBESRBEEE-&
At 31 March 2020 R-B-_EF=R=+—H

Non-derivative financial FiEEMAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMEMTE
Lease liabilities HEaE
At 31 March 2019 RZZB-AF=ZA=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Within Total
interest Within 210 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
nEFH AR
BRAE -ER  ZZRER BBEF RERELE REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER

Trade and other payables ESRAMERTE - 61,901 - - 61,901 61,901

Amounts due to non-controlling ERFERERTNE
interests - 180 - - 180 180
62,081 - - 62,081 62,081

SRESEEEARAT 2019/2020 £5%  14]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements
The following note provides information about how
Group determine fair values of various financial assets

financial liabilities

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

the
and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the fair

value of these financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and i

used).

nput

Fair value as at

EmMIR-&

AFEER

BT M RE 4R G470 BA AR R 0 T L % R
SRMEERSMABEATEZEHN

BREABELATENAEZFSES
MEEREMARZLATFHE

TREHEBUNEEZSEREER
THBEZLAVEZEN (ABME 4
BRERFAZBABE) -

Fair value  Valuation techniques and

hierarchy key inputs

RUTEMZAFE QFEER MEFEREEHANE
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
S ¥E _—_T-NF
=A=+—H =A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER
Financial assets
SMAE
Financial assets at fair value through 716 2,072 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
profit or loss an active market
ROAVESFNEG2SRERE F1R REBTS<RE

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, there

were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level

1 and Level 2, and there were no transfers into or out of

Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

The carrying amount of all other assets and liabilities were

approximate to their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
include lease liabilities), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

emMI AR

BxERBEER
AEEERHERNUBRRAKECERE
BEFEEE TEBELLEBRERS
BARRTFREADF - RBEFE X
EECERERESTE-

FEBzEAEREEEY (BEHES
&) RERREEEHEARA L AER
FEARGERE (BREERITRARRH
#) -

Gearing ratio BEXARILE
The gearing ratio at 31 March 2020 and 2019 was as RZIEZEFR-_ZF-NE=ZR=1+—
follows: BEREBBLROT:
2020 2019
—P-¥F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT
Debt (note(a)) B (M) 21,190 -
Cash and cash equivalents BHeKBELESHER (55,441) (126,830)
Net debt FEH N/A &R N/A T 3& A
Equity (note (b)) B (B EE(b)) 77,425 131,812
Net debt to equity ratio FERHERLE N/A FiEH N/A T3 F
Notes: B 5T

(a) Debt comprises lease liabilities as detailed in Notes 27

respectively.
(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

As a part of review, the management considers the cost
of capital and risk associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendation of the manager the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares and new debts.

() BEBBEINRME27FHEZEES
{Eo

(b)) BREABEFREEZZPBEARME-

hEHz By EEERR BEANK
ARERESBEENEE REEEAN
EERZR AEEKBEBRYRE BT
HRRHEFHEEERELERE-

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5.
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwiill
The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

(b) Provision of ECL for trade and other
receivables, deposits and finance lease
receivables
The loss allowances for financial assets are based
on assumption about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group use judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates

at the end of each reporting period.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's for trade and other receivables, deposits and

finance lease receivables are disclosed in Notes 4(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgement from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable

amount.

5. R FREERRZERRIE
— iR

(c)

(d)

WE - BERRMZERFERN
REEBEERF 165 RNEE
HEHE - BERRB2AEREF
- UBEATTHBZNERXS
H-UERAFHRDIRKBEEER
REBELER EEZAPAER
RIE URHBAEEZTERIRIM
EEZRBEEMRSIRZRMTE
BEE - AN N A 8 A MR
HeBRRRHBEANETFES
RS o

FREDEEZRE

LB EHAEHEERTEY
BEEEWE $HZEEZIREE
ETH G - BRENABEEETE
ZERTNEY EBEREERE
BHAETEZRENH -ZEEHT
EEEEREORERSESEHZH
Eimae e ERABBBMHE R
BEEZREEDHRERN  UFFMG
FE2ANDEEREC THRER
REEZREE JREEEDAR
SEEHRARERZEEMEE
ZEFFARRBEREFHRIRE
MEZEEHRER ZRBREE M
FRBEEATRRESFENER
HE AERRESBRUSZEERE
MR EA TR E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(e) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions

in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. The
Group is principally engaged in provision of general hospital

services in the PRC.

Accordingly, the Group does not present separately segment
information. No analysis of the Group's results by type of
works nor assets and liabilities is regularly provided to the
CODM for review. In addition, all of the Group’s revenue is
generated in PRC and all of the Group's assets and liabilities
are mainly located in PRC. Accordingly, no business or

geographical segment information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group principally operates in PRC, also the place of
domicile. All revenue are derived from PRC based on the
location of services delivered and the Group's property, plant

and equipment are all located in PRC.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

REVENUE 7. @
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows AEEBRFERRZAMOT
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHExT
Revenue from contract with customers REBEBSERZZEFSHKEG:
recognised at a point in time:
Provision of general hospital services RBEEMEERRE 326,926
All revenue contracts are for one year or less. As permitted FEREENAI—FRUT - RIERE
by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price BB EERE 1S5 BRBEE A AT
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. PHRERBTENNXZEBRTTHEE -
OTHER REVENUE 8. Hfhk=z
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Finance lease interest income RERERE WA -
Bank interest income RITFE WA 469
Sundry income B A 277
746

SREBEEEARAT 2019/2020 5% 147
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E—FEF=ZA=+—HILLFE

9.

OTHER LOSS AND GAIN, NET
o

-

10.

9. HttBIRE W B

Exchange loss [EHEE

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HENE - BRER
plant and equipment BREZ (BB Wi

Loss on written-off of property, plant and W% - BMERREZEFEE
equipment

FINANCE COSTS 10. MBRA

Interest on: LUTEBZFE:

- bank borrowings —RITIEE

— promissory notes - RHERE

— lease liabilities -HEEE
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HK$'000
T

(103)

128

25

2019
—F-hEF
HK$'000
TR

480
1,056
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 11. BRRAEGE

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 31) EEMS (KMFaE31) 6,102
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme HthE T ZRKBERFEHER
contributions 10,674
Other staff costs Hth & TRA 73,430
90,206
Auditors’ remuneration =B AN &
— Audit services — B R 450
— Non-audit services —EET R 250
Loss on early redemption of promissory note 12 2 B E & X ZE 2 E 18 1,424
Fair value loss on financial assets at RATEFAERZZEREERZ
fair value through profit or loss (Note 19) AP {EEE (MizE19) 867
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 20) EEREREE (5E20) 32,214
Impairment loss recognised in respect REZREMERNRIE -EZER
of trade and other receivables, deposit EREERERIEER Z
and finance lease receivables, net WIEEE B 2,323
Cost of inventories sold EEFEERAR 93,821
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEEERIEE 827
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREBITE (ME16)
plant and equipment (Note 16) 22,669
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) £ FHEEEITE (HfzE17) -
Loss on modification of lease BRI ERE -
Expense relating to short-term lease FEEHHEZHX =
Operating lease rentals in respect of ERETHREFZLEHERS
land and buildings 20,292

SREREEEARAT 2019/2020 5% 149
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

12. TAXATION

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Provision
on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated at the

rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

12. NI\
AEBDRERASEERS A AME
RE4AZREELENRAZALREE
ZRAAEEMMFER - Hit B2 E
BREFBBENREAEBLE T
R BREEN  REREARE BRI

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and R ®
practices in respect thereof.
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT
Current tax: BOEAFR 18 :
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HRERERER 1,088 4,252
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12. TAXATION - continued

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss

before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in

which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax expense at the effective tax rate are as follows:

12. RIE—4E

BARB R EME A B E R P it YR
ERRGFEEARGRBABENAEH
X RRERRRTENHREMNY
RWOT

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

FET

Loss before taxation MRELATE 18 (46,065)
Notional tax on loss before tax, RERREBERKE R EZER
calculated at rates applicable to A 2 R E Z RE AT

profits in the tax jurisdiction concerned ez BEHRE (6,505)
Tax effect of income not taxable BEAB 2B AZH KT E

for tax purposes (77)

Tax effect of expense not deductible FHNFEHE BB E

for tax purpose 5,632

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERABTEEBEZHEEE 5,202

Taxation iR 4,252

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$15,673,000 (2019: HK$40,445,000)
available for offset against future profits and amount
of HK$15,392,000 will expire in 2025 and HK$281,000

will expire in 2024. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised in respect of the unutilised tax losses due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

RBEEHR AEE KB A E
E51815,673,0008 L (= E— A &F:
40,445,000 7T ) AT A 1E 4K 85 AR AR 0E K -
B#%15392,008 TR _8F
FIEAR ©%6281,0008 TR T - NF
FIHA o B B 05 FI SR 2 A ] FE R
MU BB EARDA R BHEBEREL
MEEE-

TREREEAMRLTF 2019/2020 F3#
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

12. TAXATION - continued

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rate
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazette on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25% and
profits tax above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Group considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rate as
insignificant to the consolidation financial statement. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% for both years. No
tax is payable for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HKS$Nil) since there were no assessable profit generated in

Hong Kong.
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e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

TAXATION - continued

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin

Islands.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$NIl).

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

(a) Basic

12.

13.

14.

MR-
REMEHERRBELHEZRARK
ERAEEBASMNEMNRSHEERE
BRELZBESZHMES-

BB
RAREBTFAERBRRBE_ZT-_ZF
ZAZT-BLEFERBERPRE (=%
—NEFE FHBR)

BRI

ARBAEBABEEREARBESRE
TIRBUT BUIETE

(a) &F

2020 2019
ot Jond -} 3 ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss attribution to holders of ordinary ZNATEZBERIFE AEILEIE
shares of the Company (49,504) (50,356)

Weighted average number of ERTEBRZMETLHE

ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F®&)

2,818,250 2,818,250
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE - continued 14. BRREBE &

(b) Diluted (b) #®
For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, diluted BE_Z_ZTER-_ZF—-—NF=A
loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share. ESt—HLFEE SREEERHE
BREREIEMER -

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Merry Sky Investments Limited and its

15. HEME LT
(a) MERBARLFIRKEMELR

subsidiaries (“Merry Sky Group”)

On 23 March 2020, Ally Health International Limited
("Ally Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant
to which Ally Health and the independent third party
agreed to sell and acquire the entire issued share
capital of Merry Sky Investments Limited ("Merry
Sky”) and its subsidiaries which engaged in provision
of general hospital services, for an aggregate

consideration of approximately HK$11,000,000.

According to the completion terms in the sale and
purchase agreement, the completion of the sales and
purchase agreement has been taken place on 30 March
2020. Upon the completion, Merry Sky had ceased
to be an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the Company had ceased to have any
interests in Merry Sky Group and the results of Merry
Sky Group had been no longer be consolidated with

the results of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 15. HEMBE AT — &

(a) Merry Sky Investments Limited and its () RXBRBRRLATREMELR
subsidiaries (“Merry Sky Group”) - continued (MX%E]) —-&
Summary of the effects of the disposal of Merry Sky HERAEB 2 EMMOT :

Group are as follows:

Consideration received in cash and cash CWEHEERESZEHERRE
equivalents

Analysis of assets and liabilities over %(ERFHENEIERABRIH:

which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment ME -BERSEE

Right-of-use assets EREERE

Inventories 7E

Trade receivables, prepayments B EWRIE A RER M EKRRE

and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents RekRREZEEEE

Trade and other payables B5 REMEMNRIE

Tax payable FERBE

Lease liabilities HEEaE

Net assets disposed EHEEEFE

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHHBBARZER:

Consideration received 2 WRE

Less: Net assets disposed of W BEHEEEFE
Release of translation reserve RRIRE RS

Non-controlling interests TR ER

Loss on disposal HEEE

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HERXEEMELEZRQRABRE:
of Merry Sky Group:

Consideration received in cash EWRERBESEEEERE
and cash equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances Bl BHEZRSRBESEEEE &6
disposed of
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

15. HEMBE AT — &
(b) HEREHRAFREMELT

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(b) Sino Brave Investments Limited and its

subsidiaries (“Sino Brave Group”)

On 16 April 2019, Ally Health International Limited
("Ally Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant
to which Ally Health and the independent third
party agreed to sell and acquire the entire issued
share capital of Sino Brave Investments Limited
(“Sino Brave”) and its subsidiaries which engaged in
provision of general hospital services, for an aggregate

consideration of approximately HK$1,000,000.

According to the completion terms in the sale and
purchase agreement, the completion of the sales
and purchase agreement has been taken place on 31
August 2019. Upon the completion, Sino Brave had
ceased to be an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the Company had ceased to have
any interests in Sino Brave Group and the results of
Sino Brave Group had been no longer be consolidated

with the results of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 15. HEMB AT —#&

(b) Sino Brave Investments Limited and (b) HEXRFTARATIREMELR
its subsidiaries (“Sino Brave Group”) (TteEEKEE]) —#8
- continued
Summary of the effects of the disposal of Sino Brave HELEEB 2 EMMMT

Group are as follows:

At
31 August
2019
"
—E-NF
NB=+—H
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash BWREFRESEEBEERE
equivalents 1,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over %(ERFENIEREARIH:
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERRE 10,236
Right-of-use assets EREERE 26,864
Deposit of property, plant and equipment # % - BERRERS 2,840
Inventories 7E 4,700
Trade receivables, prepayments B 5 EWEIE  FEAFRIE R H A U I8
and other receivables 11,987
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELZEER 2,371
Trade and other payables B RHEMEMNRIE (42,801)
Lease liabilities HEEE (28,574)
Net liabilities disposed EHEABEE (12,377)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHHBATZERE:
Consideration received 2R E 1,000
Add: Net liabilities disposed of m:eHEasEsE 12,377
Release of translation reserve RRILE RS 2,635
Gain on disposal HE W= 16,012
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HELESFEEEZRERHEEH:
of Sino Brave Group:
Consideration received in cash EWRERESEEEERE
and cash equivalents 1,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances F: BHEZHSRRESSEEBEH%

disposed of (2,371)

(1,371)
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15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 15. HEMB AT —#&

(c) Hero Vision Enterprises Limited and its () HREXBBRATREMELR
subsidiaries (“Hero Vision Group”) (T=%EE])
On 30 October 2018, the Company entered into a R-ZE-NE+A=+TH &KQFH
disposal agreement pursuant to which the Company I HERE B RAREREE
agreed to dispose of the entire issued share capital ERSEERz2MBERITRAEA R
of Hero Vision Group with a consideration of f€%573,000,0008 T - HEE R =
HK$73,000,000. The disposal was completed on 31 E-NEFE—-—B=+—HEMK-

January 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

15. HEMBE AT — &
() WEAXERAFREMELT

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(c) Hero Vision Enterprises Limited and

its subsidiaries (“Hero Vision Group”)

(THRKE]) —#&

- continued
Summary of the effects of the disposal of Hero Vision HERSEBZEEMMMT
Group are as follows:
2019
—EBE-NF
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash BWRERRESEEBERE
equivalents 73,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over %(kERFIEHNTERARIF:
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment ME -BEREE 29,533
Prepaid lease payments A HERE 21,152
Inventories 7E 9,824
Trade receivables, prepayments B EWRRIE -FAIREREMEKRRE
and other receivables 49,238
Cash and cash equivalents RekRSEEER 25,469
Trade and other payables B REMENTRIE (16,778)
Amount due to non-controlling FEA IR IR IR R AR IE
shareholders (643)
Tax payable B HIE (56)
Net assets disposed EHEEEFRE 117,739
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHMBATZEIR:
Consideration received 2 WRHE 73,000
Less: Net assets disposed of B BEHEEEFE (117,739)
Release of translation reserve PRRRIRE 1S 8,006
Non-controlling interests FIERETS \ 32,222
Less: Other costs directly attributable W HEEEEMEMARAR
to the disposal (700)
Loss on disposal HEEE (5,211)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEESKSEEECRERAPRHE:
of Hero Vision Group:
Consideration received in cash and cash BWREFRESEZEBEERE
equivalents N \ 73,000
Less: Other costs directly attributable W HEEERMAEMAR
to the disposal (700)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances R :EHEZRERBSEHEERER
disposed of (25,469)
46,831

SHBEEEERAT
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15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(c)

(d)

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

Hero Vision Enterprises Limited and

its subsidiaries (“Hero Vision Group”)

- continued

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the year
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. For the period from 1
April 2018 to the date of disposal, Hero Vision Group
was engaged in provision of general hospital services in
the PRC.

Pico Rise Investments Limited and its

subsidiaries (“Pico Rise Group”)

On 25 July 2018, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed
to dispose of the entire issued share capital of Pico
Rise Group with a consideration of HK$900,000. The
disposal was completed on 25 July 2018.

(c)

(d)

15. HERB AT — &

WRERBRAFDRAEMELF
(THRKE]) —#&

HEBRGAXRFEFRSRER
HtzHBBERZBERN-B-F
—\FHA-—REEHEAHILH
B #SEERPERSRERS
BRRE -

Pico Rise Investments
Limited & E P} 2 5 ([ Pico
Rise$k @ ])
RZZE-NFLtAZ+HEB &2
AR HERZ Bl NATREE
HEPico RiseiRB 2z 22 BHITR
> KREH900,000/8 T HEBE R
ZE-NFEtAZt+HEHREMK
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued
(d) Pico Rise Investments Limited and its

subsidiaries (“Pico Rise Group”) — continued

Summary of the effects of the disposal of Pico Rise

Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are as follows:

15. HEMB AT -
(d) Pico Rise Investments

Limited &R B 2 7 ([ Pico

RiseSk@]) —#&

HH €& Pico Rise Investments Limited
MEMBAR S EMMUT :

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash BWREFERESEZEBEERE
equivalents -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over X(XERFIENZIERABIN:
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERRE 3
Trade receivables, prepayments and B EWFIE B REBER A ERRIE
other receivables (579)
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESZEEER 36
Trade and other payables B REMEMNTRE (3,827)
Net liabilities disposed SHEEGEFEE (4,367)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—HHBATZKRE :
Consideration to be received 2R E 900
Add: Net liabilities disposed of W EHEAEFE 4,367
Release of translation reserve RRRERE 630
Gain on disposal &k 5,897
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of H &Pico RisesKEESLZREFANRE:
Pico Rise Group:
Consideration received in cash and cash BWREFRESEZEBEERE
equivalents -
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances RF:EHEZRERBESEEERER
disposed of (36)
(36)

SHBEEEERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(d) Pico Rise Investments Limited and its

(e)

subsidiaries (“Pico Rise Group”) — continued

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the year
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. For the period from 1
April 2018 to the date of disposal, Pico Rise Group was
engaged in provision of general hospital services in the
PRC.

Grand Motion Investments Limited (“Grand
Motion")

On 5 July 2018, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed
to dispose of the entire issued share capital of Grand
Motion with a consideration of HK$60,000. The
disposal was completed on 26 July 2018.

15. HERB AT — &

(d) Pico Rise Investments

(e)

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

15. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 15. HEMBE AT — &

(e) Grand Motion Investments
Limited ([ Grand Motion ])
-4
& Grand MotionZ 57 2 4% 4 4n

Motion are as follows: T

(e) Grand Motion Investments Limited (“Grand

Motion"”) - continued

Summary of the effects of the disposal of Grand

2019
—2-hEF
HK$'000
FERT
Consideration received in cash and cash BWRERRESEEBERE
equivalents 60
Analysis of assets and liabilities over %(ERFENIEREARIH:
which control was lost:
Net assets disposed CHEEEFE _
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHHMBATZKRE:
Consideration received 2R E 60
Less: Net assets disposed of W EHEEEFE -
Gain on disposal

HE WS 60

Consideration received in cash and cash CEWRE&RRESEEEERE

equivalents 60
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances E: BHEZBHESRRESSEEBEH%

disposed of -

60

HEBEBEFTALAFEGREBER
Ht2HEKRER2BER - B=-F
and other comprehensive income. For the period from —-NFNA—BEZELHEBHILE
1 April 2018 to the date of disposal, Grand Motion AR Grand MotionAF A EH|=

was dormant during the year. E

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the

year in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HiZ =& =

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BEZA=+—HILEE

16. ME - BEREE

Furniture Machinery
and Leasehold and Motor Office  Construction
Building fixtures impro Equip vehicles Equipment in progress Total
#F RARKE HRAVERE AIRLE RE BOERR ERIE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER TR FEL FER FER FEL FER
Cost %3
As at 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FWA-A 35,669 11,977 57,560 69,825 9,159 17,135 - 201,325
Addition RE - 119 34 6,481 4,033 801 2,700 14,168
Derecognised on disposal HEHBLARRALER
of Subsidiaries (33,368) (2,292) (13,804) (24,542) (4,471) (3,441) - (81,918)
Disposals HE - - - - - (1,385) - (1,385)
Exchange realignment ERRE (2,301) (773) (3,675) (7,020 (458) (1,008) - (15,235)
As at 31 March 2019 and RZB-AFZAZ+-BR
1 April 2019 “Z-hEMmA-A - 9,031 40,115 44,744 8,263 12,102 2,700 116,955
Addition wE - 267 3,955 3,893 17 1,227 78,127 87,486
Transfer from construction HEERIRERZE
in progress to leasehold HENELL
improvement - - 16,350 - - (16,350) -
Derecognised on disposal of HEMBLRRALER
Subsidiaries - (3,351) (37,712) (32,514) (2,642) (7,974) (2,439) (86,632)
Disposals HE - (33) - (1,889) - (53) - (1,975)
Written-off HisH - - (3,670) - - - - (3,670)
Exchange realignment ERBZ - (603) (2,959) (2,994) (259) (729) (1,692) (9,236)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZZZE=ZA=+-H - 5311 16,079 11,240 5,379 4,573 60,346 102,928
Accumulated depreciation RiHAE
As at 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FWA-A 7,968 7,479 42,682 41,233 7321 13,146 - 119,829
Charge for the year AEEXH 2,410 1,416 4,166 10,830 1,883 1,964 - 22,669
Derecognised on disposal HEHBLARRALER
of subsidiaries (9,863) (2,288) (13,804) (19,853) (3,858) (2,716) B (52,382)
Disposals HE - - - - - (1,249) - (1,249)
Exchange realignment ERRE (515) (595) (3,030) (5,024) (340) (862) - (10,366)
As at 31 March 2019 and RZB-AFZAZ+-BR
1 April 2019 “Z-hEMmA-A - 6,012 30,014 27,186 5,006 10,283 - 78,501
Charge for the year AEEXH - 1,110 4,320 2,835 148 1,097 - 9,510
Derecognised on disposal HENBARRLLER
of subsidiaries - (2,906) (21,243) (22,962) (2,385) (6,712) - (56,208)
Disposals HE - (24) - (1,551) - (49) - (1,624)
Written-off s - - (2,567) - - - - (2,567)
Exchange realignment EREZ - (422) (1,982) (1,816) (198) (594) - (5,012)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZ-ZE=A=1-H - 3,770 8,542 3,692 2,571 4,025 - 22,600
Net Book Value REFE
As at 31 March 2020 AZE_BE=A=+-H - 1,541 7,537 7,548 2,808 548 60,346 80,328
As at 31 March 2019 “Z-hEZA=1-8 - 3,019 10,101 17,558 3,257 1,819 2,700 38,454
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, Jiaxing Shuguang MiE: RBE-_Z_ZF=A=1+—HALHF

was move to the new location. The surplus equipment and

leasehold improvement were disposed or written-off. The
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment of
HK$337,000 and the loss on written-off of property, plant
and equipment of HK$1,103,000 was recoginsed for the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS/RIGHT-OF-USE 17. BIHEERE FHESEE

ASSETS

Right-of-use assets: FEREEE:
Lease
properties
HEYE
HK$'000
FET
Cost: 5%,
As at 1 April 2019 R=ZZ-NFMA—H 133,005
Addition =1 37,254
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBE QR (62,897)
Lease modification HEEF (87,626)
Exchange realignment BE R AR (3,613)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZZE-ZEBF=A=+—H 16,123
Accumulated depreciation: RiiE:
As at 1 April 2019 R=ZZ-NFMA—H -
Charge for the year KEEZH 16,640
Lease modification HEEET (1,493)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR (11,256)
Exchange realignment fE R AR (369)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZZEZZEF=R=+—H 3,522
Net carrying amount: MRERE -
As at 31 March 2020 RIEZEF=HA=+—H 12,601
As at 1 April 2019 R=ZZE-NFMA—H 143,821

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Jiaxing Shuguang
was move to the new location and the lease agreement was

modified from 15 years to 13 year. The difference between

REBEEZE-Z=-Z

F=A=+—HLLEFE">
EEHEBACREENHHBEREHZEH
1ISFEERA13F -FAREEHEEEAE

the carrying amount for right-of-use asset and lease ZERAEEZESENRESERAHEEBTE
liabilities is recognised in profit or loss as loss on a lease B
modification.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS/RIGHT-OF-USE

ASSETS - continued

Lease liabilities of HK$21,190,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$12,601,000 and the
finance lease receivables of HK$7,600,000 as at 31 March
2020. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are

held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security

for borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31

March 2020 is set out in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

During the current year, the Group leases properties for its
operations. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition

of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

17. A HERE EHERE

ASSETS - continued — &
Prepaid lease payments: FEAEERE:

HK$'000

FERT

Cost 2% 3
As at 1 April 2018 RZE-—NFMA—H 35,348
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QA (33,068)
Exchange realignment PE & % (2,280)
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-AF=ZA=+—H -
Accumulated depreciation Retin &
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE—-NEWB—H 11,854
Charge for the year REEXZH 827
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR (11,916)
Exchange realignment FE & % (765)

As at 31 March 2019

Net book value

As at 31 March 2019

DEPOSIT FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

The balance represent deposits paid for machinery and

equipment for general hospital services.

R-ZZE-hF=ZR=+—H

IRERE

RZZE-AE=ZA=+—H

18. MR BERRMZE®

ZERBANINREEBRRE 2
BmRREZEE-
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BAFEHMAREZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
ot et -3 3 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Financial assets at fair value BAOFEHABRZEMEE:
through profit or loss:
Listed investments — equity securities EHRE-REBLMZ
listed in Hong Kong BAFE S 716 2,072
Note: P EE

As at 31 March 2020, the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss represents approximately 0.67% (2019: 2.91%) of entire
issued share capital of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
401) (“Wanijia Group”). During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Company recognised a loss of approximately HK$1,356,000 (2019:
Loss HK$867,000) in its profit or loss in respect of the interest in
Wanjia Group due to the significant decrease in the share price of
Wanjia Group during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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20. GOODWILL 20. &
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Cost 2% 3
As at 1 April REA—A 451,389
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR (194,820)
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 256,569
Accumulated impairment losses RArtEBERR
As at 1 April HMA—H 399,082
Impairment loss recognised EERREESE 32,214
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR (194,820)
As at 31 March R=A=+—8H 236,476
Carrying amounts IR E
As at 31 March R=ZA=+—H 20,093
Note: B 5T
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in EEEERHENRZFERGRE M ERRMT
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. 21 TR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 21.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indication that goodwill might be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to the following cash generating
units (CGUs). The carrying amount of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 March 2020 and

2019 are allocated as follows:

R EAR
AEESFETHERENR WEFE
BREBTMENE AEETEE
RENRTNE BEEARETIHRLE
EEM-R-B-FER-F-NEF=A
=t-8 BEZREE (NRRTHRE
BE)ABMT

2020 2019
—22F ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FERT
Beijing Tongji Hospital Co., Limited EtREEERERA R
(“Beijing Tongji") (MExEE])

— provision of general hospital services - R BERMES T ERRE

in the PRC 6,108 20,093

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
- continued

General valuation assumptions

Vi.

Vii.

there will be no major change in the existing political,

legal and economic conditions in the PRC;

save for those proposed changes on taxation policies
announced by the Tax Bureau of the PRC, there will
be no major change in the current taxation law and
tax rates as prevailing and that all applicable laws and

regulations on taxation will be complied with by CGUs;

the interest rates and exchange rates will not differ

materially from those presently prevailing;

the availability of finance will not be a constraint on
the forecast growth of CGUs operations in accordance

with the business plan and the projection;

the business forecast are based on reasonable grounds,
reflecting estimates which have been arrived at after
due and careful consideration by their management

and will materialise;

the facilities, systems and the technology utilised by
CGUs do not infringe any relevant regulations, laws

and Government directives;

all equipment and facilities utilised by CGUs can
perform efficiently and safely according to the

purposes for which it was designed and built;

. AERENS &

— R fh E R

Vi

Vil.

PERKNBOR  ERENEEREER
BEAREL

BRPBEREARERNZERBE
RERESBN BANBELIER
BTRESTEHREAEEH M
BeEEBUBETHEBARE
EERER

R REE
EEEKX

I
M ¢
iy
A
)
i
ai
e
B
&
I

RECAMEESTERFRTE
EEMRERTERBERITENE
EREAER

EBFEADERSEREMEL A
RBRWEF DA EEEEERE
ZEEEH AR TLUEE;

BeELBENMANRE RER
Hfitr I 32 IR AR M ABBE AR - AR
EBFES

REeELENANMERERR
A EBEMRGREZENAR
BRREZE2EM;
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2&!

VA AN

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

— continued

General valuation assumptions - continued

Viii.

Xi.

Xil.

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

CGUs have obtained all necessary permits and
approvals to carry out the business operations in the
PRC and shall have no legal impediment in renewing

those permits and approvals from time to time;

CGUs and their operating assets are free and clear of
any lien, charge, option, pre-emption rights or other

encumbrances or rights whatsoever;

CGUs shall secure and retain competent management,
key personnel, marketing and technical staff to carry

out and support the their operations;

CGUs shall renew the tenancy of the hospital premises
from time to time and shall have uninterrupted rights
to carry out its business operations within the hospital

premises on long term basis; and

the estimated fair values do not include consideration
of any extraordinary financing or income guarantees,
special tax considerations or any other atypical benefits

which may influence the ordinary fair value of CGUs.
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Beijing Tongji — Provision of general hospital
services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period, and a pre-tax discount rate of
14.78% (2019: 17.21%) per annum.

The cash flow projections during the budgeted period are
based on the same expected gross margins of 48% (2019:
47%) throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using zero
growth rate (2019: 0%) per annum. The decline of growth
rate mainly due to the outbreak of COVID-19, a majority of
the department in Beijing Tongji have suspended operations.
To tackle the threat to public health posed by the Pandemic,
many countries have implemented lockdown measures to
slow the spread of virus by reducing face to face human
interaction, Management believes that change in the key
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would
lead to further impairment loss. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

The directors consider that an impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately HK$13,985,000 (2019: HK$32,214,000)
should be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. K

e
= 2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHxT
Finished goods K@ 8,150
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. BARAEMBERRARZKS
DEPOSITS
2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FHExT
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 3,808
Less: Impairment loss recognised WMEZERRIERERZ
in respect of trade receivables WEEE (1,666)
2,142
Prepayments and deposit paid EAREREHERS 7,287
Other receivables H b fE W R IB 27,655
37,084
Less: Impairment loss recognised BB EMmERRIERRZ
in respect of other receivables REEE (2,647)
34,437
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Payment terms with customers from general hospital and
healthcare and hospital management services are normally
payable from 0 to 30 days. The following is an aged analysis
of the gross amount of trade receivables based on invoice

date at the end of the reporting period:

23. HRAREMBERRARES

— iR
REMBRERBERBREEREEF
ZRHBRAEX-—REAROEIHRAZF R
BEMKR REFAHN2E S BWFIRER
BZIRE DT

2020 2019
—F_8F —FT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAET

0Z90H
91Z180H
181%365H
#3651

0 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019 under expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 are
set out in Note 4(b).

- 2,163
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- 81
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- 3,808
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E—FEF=ZA=+—HILLFE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24, B mEHEEREA

The Group entered into sublease arrangements as an AEEFRHEEMET LHHELZH (A

___.-fm't/ermediate lessor for the leased properties. The rental are BEBEA) - HBAzHeEE RS
fixed over the lease term and the terms of subleases entered RA=FHEHSZFTHEEENER
into 3 years and the sublease is classified as a finance lease EEEESEARMERE-BE-Z_-F
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head F=Z=A=+—BHLEENERFEFNEA
lease. The effective interest rate is approximately 7.5% H75% BE-_ZE_EF=A=+—H
per annum for the year ended 31 March 2020. During the LEE ARABIAPHASTELRERE
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company recognized the FIE U A £702,0005 7T

finance lease interest income of sublease was amount of
approximately HK$702,000.

The directors considered the credit risk of the Group's EERAFEECERREREERRZ
finance lease receivables is relatively low as they have a low FERBEEHRK REAKEZENR
risk of default and no allowance for expected credit loss BREKEFRYEERCERBREE-
during the year.

Details of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables EWRESRESE S HETGEERA
are set out in Note 4(b). Bt sE4(b) o

As at 31 March 2020 RoE—_EE=H=+—H

Finance lease receivables comprise: EUREREHRERESRE:
Within one year —FR

In the second year ETF

Less: unearned finance income W ARBEBERA

Present value of minimum lease payment ~ R{EEWHEERBRE

receivables
Analysed as: pai =
Current FE
Non-current ERB
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 March 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$16,879,000
(2019: HK$94,602,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, but conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorisation to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. e RBSFERAE

R-ZZE-ZF=A=+—8 FEEZE
SRESLEEEBEREUARE (AR
B EAEN16,879,0008 T (=&
— L 194,602,000 TT) 2RE - AR
MIATERRRAHMBER HARBR
BAENETEBTHEZINESHIRH
REE - EERNEEERE AEEE
HEERBERBETHEER ZRITEA
REHIBAHMER-

RITERANOH L BIEERTCHE
FERFRITZER

26. W2 5 R FE (T &R IR

2020 2019

—E_EF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 4,053 14,817
Receipts in advance FE UK IE - 570
Accruals and other payables (note) EEERREME[FIE (M) 30,396 46,514
34,449 61,901

note:

As at 31 March 2020, the accrucls and other payables mainly
represent the construction cost due to the constructors of
amount HK$17,037,000 (2019: HK$Nil).

B &E -
RZBE-EF=A=+—H EFERAKEH

HENAREFEERENREES 2BERAE
17,037,000 BT (ZE—NF:ZHET) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26.
- continued

“The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date

5 B i BB IR — 48

BEZAHCEZRNKEZRR DN

is as follows: M
2019
—E-AF
HK$'000
FET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 7,713
91 to 180 days 91&180H 1,895
181 to 365 days 1812365H 2,783
Over 365 days HiE365H 2,426
14,817

The average credit period on purchase of certains goods in

range from 30 to 90 days.
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LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAR
Analysed as pa il

— Current —-R

— Non-current —ERE

Minimum lease payments due RUTHRE Sz &EHERE
— Within one year -—FR

— More than one year but not more than two years -—FRETEBWME

— More than two year but not more than five years -MERETHEBREF

- More than five years —-BFHE

Less: Future finance charges W ARREEER

Present value of lease liabilities HESERE

Present value of minimum lease payment RIEBAERERE

— Within one year -—FRr

— More than one year but not more than two years -—FZETHEBME

— More than two year but not more than five years -MEEETBBAESF

— More than five years —HBFENE

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31 March 2019
has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in Note 2.

AEEEAEETEREZERERAEE
DBHRELENEIGRIBFER=ZT N
FMA— B2 AR E TR
BEBSFENBI/TRESBAEEH
ECHERBCHEEBE -R-F-—NF
ZA=t-HRZHEBERNKRESS -FH
BEEZRBUBBREENE 1R TR
ZE—HHREHNMEE2 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 28. EFIFFERR IR R ZMIA
SHAREHOLDERS
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, BAFEERRRIRESEER RER
interest free and repayable on demand. BREREE-

29. PROMISSORY NOTES 29. KR
The following tables summarised the movement of financial TERBEBZE-Z-_ZFR-_F—NF
liability component during the years ended 31 March 2020 ZA=Et+-BLFEZzeRmEENI 2
and 2019. 25

Promissory  Promissory = Promissory

Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Total
ARFEE— ARIFREZ ARFRE= &t
HK$'000
TERT
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZZE-—N\FWMA—H 33,694 7,011 1,992 42,697
Early redemption REEE (34,248) (7,072) - (41,320)
Redemption & @ - - (2,000) (2,000)
Interest expense FERX 847 164 45 1,056
Interest payable BEAFRE (293) (103) (37) (433)
As at 31 March 2019, A—_E—-NAFE=ZA=+—8"
1 April 2019 and :E_ﬂfﬁmﬁ_aﬁ
31 March 2020 —E-FF=A=t-H - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no any outstanding RZBZZEER-_ZFE-NF=ZA=+—
principal of the Promissory Notes. B #SMEEAEREEZRLEBRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

30. DEFERRED REVENUE 30. ESE ¥ A
2020 2019
—E-®F% —Th&E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Government subsidy BURT 78 B 55,699 23,387

In January 2018, the Putian Municipal People’s Government
promulgated the Notice with the aim to support the
development of the Mazu International Healthcare City.
Pursuant to the Notice, in order to implement the healthy
China strategy, promote the development of the city's health
industry, foster the health industry economic circle centered
on the Mazu International Healthcare City, and create the
“China’s First Healthy City” and “Cross-Strait Medical
Cooperation Pioneer Zone”, the Putian Municipal People’s
Government set out some preferential policies to attract
renowned medical institutions to set up world-class hospitals

in the Mazu International Healthcare City.

As of 31 March 2020, Edinburgh Hospital Management
(Putian) Company Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, received a subsidy of RMB51,000,000
(equivalent approximately HK$55,699,000)(2019:
RMB20,000,000). (equivalent approximately HK$23,387,000)
from Putian Medical Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd, a
government agent, which related to the start-up operation
fee subsidy according to the cooperation agreement. For the
details of the cooperation agreement, please refer to the
Company announcement dated 26 September 2018 and 12
October 2018.

The subsidy received or which becomes receivables is initially
recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently recognised
in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset by way of
as a reduced depreciation charge expense. During the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no subsidy income was
recognized in profit or loss.

RZZB-NF—A BHWARRFRM
EEXFBERREERERNVEN R
BEN BEERRTERE HEBHHED
REERBRAX ZFUBERERRE
BABRONREEXLSER TEPH
F-BEH IR MEEESELTE! B
HHARBRGES TEBBRE  UK5|
£ B AR T 055 40 B PR £ 2 400 B AR At
KRR -

BE_Z_ZF=A=1t—-H RESE
EthE NARZEZENBLARAET
EREE (FH) BRAGDBEBFNRE
A Putian Medical Healthcare Investment
Co., LW EREMEETEBRPAR
#£51,000,0007T (HHZ£ R #55,699,0007
7t) (ZFE—HhF: AKRM20,000,0005T
(HBE R #923,387,000587T) ) - BEAE1E
WMEzHEE BSHEALTABEHAC
- NEAAZ+ARBRZZE-NET+A
_|_ E| Z/‘\:l: °

WELZ B R WK IR I S R R IR
BWAREERITEEEFHAZEBER
EHERTERXARARBE AR - RE
ECE_EFR-E-NF=ZA=F—
B b F R 308 A8 25 20 e R 0 4 B U
A e
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/
31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
d}he_. remuneration of every director for the years ended 31
“March 2020 and 2019 are set out below:

31.

Salaries and
other benefits

i & B Fft 7

EFEHS
BREENBE-Z-_ZER_ZT-IEF
ZAZt-BLEEFEZHFMBEREI M
T

Retirement
benefits
scheme

contributions

BT B ER

2019 2019 2019 2019
—E-hE —E-hE —E-hE “E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR FHT
Executive directors HITER
Ng Chi Lung (Chairman) REE (ER)
(appointed on 23 July 2018) (R=F-N\F
tAZt+=REZME) 896 914
Jiang Tao [ 1,783 1,801
Zheng Gang iR 1,790 1,808
Chan Chi Ming Tony RFH(R=Z-NF
(appointed on 23 July 2018and ~ tA=T=RAEZER
resigned on 22 January 2019) RZE-N%F
—B=+ZHEfE) 774 782
Huang Jiaging (resigned on 23 July EME (R=Z—-N\&
2018) tA-t+=HEE) 45
Yung Ka Chun (resigned on 23 July $EZ (R=2-N\F
2018) tA=t+=HEHE) 187 193
Lin Jinzong (resigned on 23 July ~ M&R (R=Z-NF
2018) tAZ+=HEE) 112 118
Non-executive directors FUTESR
Liu Chenli AR (R=Z—NF
(appointed on 4 October 2019) T A AEZE() -
Wong Yu Man, James IR (R=Z-N\F
(resigned on 23 July 2018) tAZ+=B#&fE) 39
Tang Xun (resigned on 23 July 2018)5H (R=Z— \&E
tR-TZRE) 19
Chan Chi Ming Tony RFH(R=Z-NF
(appointed on 23 July 2018and ~ tAZ+=RAEZER
resigned on 23 January 2019) RZZE-h%F
—BZtZREM) -
Independent non-executive BUERTES
directors
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEE 120
Lam Huen Sum HAR (R=2-N\F
(appointed on 9 July 2018) tANBEZR) 87
Lau Tak Kei, Arthur AEE (R=Z-NF
(appointed on 4 October 2019) T AW AEE) -
Hu Shanlian (resigned on 23 July ~ #MEH (R=Z- &
2018) tA-T=ZHEE) 30
Lu Chuanzhen (resigned on 23 July BEE (RZZ-\&
2018) tAZt+=HEHE) 30
Zhang Bin (resigned on 23 July  RE(R=F-NF
2018) tAZT=ZHEE) 30
Liu Chenli (appointed on 9 July 20182k (R=ZF— N\
and resigned on 4 October 2019) +ANREZER
R-ZZ-NF+AMA
BHE) 87
5,643 6,102

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Jiang Tao was also

the chief executive officer of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or chief
executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or chief executive officer has waived or has agreed

to waive any emoluments during both years.

32. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three (2019: four) directors. Details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2019: one) non-

directors, highest paid employees are as follows:

31.

32.

ESMe-—&
REBEEZE-_Z-_ZFR-_ZF-NF=A
=St+-BLFE AREYE@ESHIT
B A& AR S| 2 B AR EE R
AMBERSABEBBE - AMEFER
MEBEEERTHARECEHRERBDERE
EfIE & o

ES#&
ERETEEARHSRIBEGHESR

FEREEBREFATEE=E (=ZZE—H
FNBR)EF - HEZHMEFHERGE
B BHmRERMEE3 -

HE-ZZE-EF=ZA=1+—HILFE &
TRE(ZE—NF: —R)FEEZH
BEHEEECHNESFEBNT

2020 2019

—E_ZEHF —E-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET TET

Basic salaries and allowances BEAREH e NIER 1,804 1,134
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  RKIE R 5 24 5% 36 36
1,840 1,170
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS - continued 32.

The number of these non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

ERMME &
MEBRTHHB RS HEE
FHES AH:

= =
BX 5]

2020 2019

—F_8F —T-NF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 5L £1,500,0007% 7T 1 1

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding

directors) of the Company are within the following band.

KA zEREEANE (FEREES)
BN T SIS E -

2020 2019

—E_FF _—_T-NF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000%8 T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t 1,500,000 T 1 1
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, BE_Z-_ZFR-Z-NF=ZR=+—

no emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior
management or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to gain or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

None of the senior management or the five highest
paid individuals have waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 20 April 2002, the Company may grant
options at HK$1 per offer to any director, employee, any
supplier of goods or services, any customer, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other technical
support or any shareholder of the Group or any investee or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the post-listing share option scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. No participant shall be granted an option,
if exercise in full, would result in the total number of shares
already issued under all the options granted to him or her
that are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. The exercise price of the share will be
determined at the higher of the average of closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; and the nominal value of the shares. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years

from the date of grant.

33. Rix#EsE

i A AR 4
READAR-ZZT-_FMA-THEK
e EmREBRETE AQF A UEE
REBREZZWIEBTZABRAARE
BEEAES -EE - FAERIBBHLE
B EAEFUREHRAE BEIAEM
EMiZEZENATRER AEAEH
FEMNZREERZEMRRAAEE
ERARELRARZREERIRITEM
FBHZAMFEARBARBEAQAR
MzBERE URBEBRAL -RELD
REBREFTEITRECERESR 2
BROBETEEBARATKIEITR
R10% ° i RIEBITER  BEHMER
t-EAMBRERT —E2REZE
BREFEFEBEERTEZBREM
ERITZROAEH BRCBITROLH
1% QA EHZ2EERHBRE-R
B2 AT EES LR G R EER B RE
AW AEERXS B EBRIAZFER®
B ROREEBMEBRAZ W mE:;
EROBEE=ZEF2BSEEE - BRE
ARFERERE B BET10F ZHE
RATE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

33

. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options - continued

The Company also adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 10 August 2011,
the Company may grant options not less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (2) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (3) the nominal value
of the share on the date of grant to any employee of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and any suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The total numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
if this will result in this limit being exceeded. Any grant of
options to a connected person (including but not limited
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder) or
its associates must be approved by the independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent nonexecutive
director who is the grantee of the options). No participant
shall be granted an option, if exercise in full, would result
in the total number of share issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to him or her that for the
time being subsisting and unexercised in any 12-month
period would exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue. The share options are exercisable for a period not later
than 10 years from the date of grant but subject to the early

termination of the New Share Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued

The Company also adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 10 August 2011,
the Company may grant options not less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (2) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (3) the nominal value
of the share on the date of grant to any employee of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and any suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The total numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
if this will result in this limit being exceeded. Any grant of
options to a connected person (including but not limited
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder) or
its associates must be approved by the independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent nonexecutive
director who is the grantee of the options). No participant
shall be granted an option, if exercise in full, would result
in the total number of share issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to him or her that for the
time being subsisting and unexercised in any 12-month
period would exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue. The share options are exercisable for a period not later
than 10 years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

There were no share option outstanding and exercisable
under the Post-listing share option scheme as at 31 March
2020 and 2019.

33. Bix{ERIE 1A

kR &
ARBATFR=B——FN\AB+HERAHE
RETE ([HBREE]) -A2TT
BAARBDLEEMAHMBE AR 2 EMES
BEARDAHHEAMAK B QR 2 EFH
TRIENTES REMGKERD BB -
RERZAASEZS2RPEIRY
AEEZESAEFEHEM2ETAL
RHBRE HETEETSERT ISR
ReE (WVEXMERBREXRAERG
RELBEH (AREXR)ZWHE:S 2)
FRFTEHRERABEROREZERY
AMAAEEXRA 2 FHRTE: ROKR
PRFE B ZEE - BTERBENBER
BT ERARTMEMAEMBRET SR
W EARITERNFAEBRER T RTH
R AR T EBBTRERERC BT
RATHI30% » HBRAITEM BRI LRI
B AR AR RS B A A H)
R E AR AR A Bt 8RB IR - MBS
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FRABITEE)MEBTRETFEITH
ROBHBBEBTROBLHNI%
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R

R-B_EFR=F-NF=A=+—
A B &R RRAETE T 30 e R AT R A
FIIEZBRE.

THEREEAR AT 2019/2020 £



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34.
As at 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payables as follows:

BEHERIE
RZBE—HhEFE=ZB=1+—8  Ta[H#EE
EHEETZAREEBESTREAZEN
T

2019
—EB-AF
HK$'000
TEx

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF (B
Over five years BiEhF

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain office and hospital properties. Lease and
negotiated for an average term of 2-15 years and rentals
are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent

rentals.

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 35.
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,

which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36. RKEmMIE TR A BHIE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRAXREERBETH 2EEEZE
from financing activities, including both cash and noncash HE BRACRFRSEH -RAME
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EECEEDNARERERRREESR
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows ERAEEGREESRERIEANRE
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow MmETHReEREZARE-

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Bank Promissory Lease
borrowings notes liabilities Total
HWITER ARRE HEAR et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TERT THET

(Note 2
and
Note 27)
(MEF2 R
MyEE27)
At 1 April 2018 B-ZE—N\F@A—H 10,000 42,697 - 52,697
Financing cash flows MERSRE (9,355) (45,000) - (54,355)
Non-cash movement FESEH (645) 2,303 - 1,658
At 31 March 2019, R-E—hF=A=+—H
1 April 2019 R-—E—hAhEMA—H - - 144,713 144,713
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHE&E - - (23,330) (23,330)
Non-cash movement: FESEE:
— addition of lease liabilities - A& & E LN - - 37,254 37,254
— lease modification - HEEF - - (85,960) (85,960)
— disposal of subsidiaries - HEMBLR - - (55,095) (55,095)
— interest expenses -FEBEX - - 7,137 7,137
— exchange realignment - ERAE - - (3,529) (3,529)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-_2F=A=+—H - - 21,190 21,190
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37.
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of
the directors, were carried out in the ordinary course of the

Group’s business:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management
represented amount paid to the Company’s directors as

detailed in Note 31 and Note 32 as follows:

EXHEALERS

BREaMBRRAMTIFRAZIRER
RERIN TR AEEBEBAEALET
TIRG EEZRR ZERZTINAE
BzHEXRBBREPET:

(a) EEEEBAR
FEEEBEABFMIEXFFALT
BB (HFBENMEIT R
H32)WMT

2020 2019

—E_EF —E-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Ti#T FET

Basic salaries and allowances HEAREF SN2 1,204 1,134
Retirement benefits scheme BRBRGFTEHK

contributions 18 36

1,222 1,170
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. k&
Number of
share Amount
Biz&E &
HK$'000
TER
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares EAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01E Tz & iEA
- at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, -R-ZE-N\FMA—A-
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —EZ-AF=ZA=+—H"
—Z-AEMB—-HR
—E_ZEF=A=+—H 110,000,000,000 110,000,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares &R ZE AR IR BIEIK
Non-voting convertible preference BREE0.01ETZERRIE
shares of HK$0.01 each T 458 B 12 55 B
preference shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.IETZELR
- at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, -R-ZE—N\FHA—A-
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —E-nfF=ZRA=+—AH-
—E-hFMBA—-HR
—E_EZEF¥=HA=+—H 40,000,000,000 40,000,000

sREHEEEARAT 2019/2020 5%  19]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 38. R &E -8
Number of
share Amount
Bi&E 4]
HK$'000
FTER
Issued and fully paid: ERTRME:
Ordinary shares EAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECVIBTZEER
- at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, -RZE-NFWA—H"
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —E-AFE=ZA=1+—-H"
“E-AEFENA-ARK
—EEF=RA=1+—H 2,818,249,944 28,183
Non-voting convertible preference shares R ZRE A RKELE (F1iF(a)
(note (a))
Non-voting convertible preference shares of EREE0.0TBTZERERE
HK$0.01 each AR ELER
—at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, -R=ZZE-NFM™MA—AH-
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —E-AFE=A=+—8"
TE-AFOA-BR
—_E-EF=R=+—H 98,500,000 985

Note:

(@)  The preference shares are non-voting shares. The holders
of the preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, the
holders of the preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at
any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1 to 1 each.
The conversion price will be subject to adjustments only upon
occurrence of certain dilutive events.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

39. RESERVES

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the aggregate net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group
reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
Company had no distributable reserves (including
share premium, capital reserve and accumulated loss).
Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of
the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend the Company is able to pay its debt as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends shall be distributed out of the retained profits
or other reserves, including the share premium account

and capital reserve of the Company.

39. f& 0

(a)

RABZHABRBEADARER
TEE-FCEBEAMRB W
BRRAZREEFRERADAMK
BROzZROzEEmMEBR2ZE
e

BE_Z-_2HER-_ZT-NF=A
St -BLEFE - ARAHEAH
7IkfEE (BEROEE EXNHERE
RRIER) - RBAEHBE LT E
(BRI E2E - EAAF AR
ERAARAAURRT MEED
REIKREERARBERENEEAR
AEXREBEPIH2ER AN
RAZRBRERT D IRE AR
ERRNRNFRR-REAQAT 2
HEERM REABEXAQTAR
BaNSHEMEE (BERODEE
SRR EARGEE) B
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE —ZE-_ZEF=A=+—HLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. FATFIZHERAER

]',HE COMPANY
" As at 31 March 2020

R-E—_=EF=A=+—H

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IERNGI - $ 108,692
Property, plant and equipment ME BERZE 7
Right-of-use assets FEREEE -
Finance lease receivables W mERERE -
108,699
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and deposits HittEWRIERZS 1,577
Finance lease receivables W ERERE -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT 8 A R 5k 1B 127,661
Cash and bank balances BERIIBITER 55,637
184,875
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities nEBAR
Accruals and other payables EAERRAEMENFIE 1,800
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A B FRIE 306,806
Lease liabilities HESE -
308,606
Net current liabilities mBARSHE (123,731)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. FLTFIZHMBERAKR &
THE COMPANY - continued

As at 31 March 2020 - continued R-E_ZEZHE=A=+—H—-#&
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Total assets less current liabilities EEMERTHER (15,032)
Non-current liabilities FREAME
Lease liabilities HeEas -
Net liabilities AEERH (15,032)
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BEEXR A
Share capital B A 29,168
Reserves & (44,200)
Equity attributable to owners of ELFHAARGEESR
the Company (15,032)
The financial statements were approved and authorised for BEBERNR_-_ZTE_ZEF~ATHLABE
issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2020 and signed ESHERERETR YATIHESAE
on its behalf by: #®E:
Jiang Tao Ng Chi Lung BE RERE
Director Director EFE EE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

41. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 41. LT R
Share-based
Share Capital payment  Contributed  Accumulated

premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
UEHE
iz

KiridmE ey Ed 1] BARER AHER i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TARL TER TR TER TER TER

Asat 1 April 2018 RZE-NFME-A 440,289 295,610 16,469 1,452 (777,349) (23,529)
Lapse of share option BREXH - - (16,469) - 16,469 -
Loss for the year XEERR - - - - (20,671) (20,671)
As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R-Z-h&E=B=+-BK

“Z-AEME-A 440,289 295,610 - 1,452 (781,551) (44,200)
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - (144,572) (144,572)
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-8%=A=+-H 440,289 295,610 - 1,452 (926,123) (188,772)
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of
which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2020

are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid

Place and date of
incorporation/

A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HiZ =& =

(a)

B 75 ¥R 2R Y 5

EEZR=+—HLFE

42. HBATZHE
MEARZ—&EH
AARR=

E_EF=RA=+—H

ZEEWBLR (2HBERLE)

HBWT:

Percentage of
equity interest

registration Class of ordinary share/ attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation share held /registered capital the Group activities
ML, EETRAR
AMREERBR LRREE AEEEWL
Lol =R FrisiR i &R HEMEAR RERD TEXH
Indirect
&
2020 2019
Z2IZE “E-hE
% %
Jiaxing Shenguang? The PRC Registered RMB 15,000,000 —* 55%  Provision of general hospital services
RHEX FE & AR#15,000,0007 REGLHBRRRY
Zhuhai Jinlang Hospital Company ~ The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 -+ 100%  Provision of general hospital services
Limited*
HKENEBRRARDLA FE B AR #10,000,0007 REGEMBRRS
Edinburgh Hospital Management ~ The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 51% 51%  Provision of general hospital services
(Putian) Company Limited
ETERER (BR)BRAA FE B AK#1,000,0007 REGEEBRRE
Beijing Tongji Hospital Co., Ltd* The PRC Registered RMB20,000,000 99.94% 99.94%  Provision of general hospital services
tREEERARL R FE B A K #20,000,0007 REGEUBERRS
# The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this # RBEPXEB 2 ELEHEEM
report, where indicated, is included for information &}”J'J FERAERPXEB2E
only, and should not be regarded as the official English KN Lo
names of such Chinese names.
* The Subsidiaries were disposed during the year ended * ZEMBARCHRBE=-_Z=%
31 March 2020. For more detail, please refer to Note =A E‘f—— H JJ:EF“VM&.':H
15. E-FHEZFHE F2HME
15 ¢

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect

the results or assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ERAIIADFHBARSDESR
RUEFAEHXEIEEREAZE
E-EERRRAELBHBATZ

R B ERER

BRTUR °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT ZHIE—&

— continued

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

noncontrolling interests:

(b) REXFRRERZFZEM

BAFEZER
TRBSIGE EA KBRS A
e FEES U PSSR

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non
Name of subsidiary place of business interests controlling interests controlling interests
M ER HERESRFARER SEEFIRER
HELTSR TERRNE (1721 LTAT) za# RitERRRE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z2I2F —EZ-NEF | ZBIBE -T-nfF | ZBIBE “E-NF
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TiEn TET TAR
Jiaxing Shuguang The PRC - 45% - 834 - 18,303
sREy G
Edinburgh Hospital Management (Putian) The PRC
Company Limited 49% 49% (5,163) (551) (5,016) (15)
FTERER (ER)BRAR i

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.
Jiaxing Shuguang was disposed during the year ended

31 March 2020. For more detail, please refer to Note
15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EE —E=—EF=ZA=+—HILLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. BB AT Z N —#&
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZERERZFEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BATGZHE &
- continued
BTEHEREE (HEH)BERLR TTEREE (HE)BRLAR
2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FET
Current assets mENEE 23,714
Non-current IERE 30
Current liabilities mEAE (389)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (23,387)
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ANRQAES AEGER
Company (17)
Non-controlling interests FERER (15)
Revenue 2= 3,405
Loss for the year rEEEE (1,124)
Loss attributable to owners of the KAREEAEBLEE
Company (573)
Loss attributable to non-controlling FERERELERER
interests (551)
Loss for the year rEEEIE (1,124)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42.
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

- continued
ETTHRER (HH)BRAF - continued

B EZ B —

(b) REXFRRERZFZEM
BARZHR &

ETHRERE (FH)BRAF-&

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Total comprehensive RABEE AEAL
loss attributable to owners of the T HEHEBARE
Company (573)
Total comprehensive loss FERERELZHEBBARE
attributable to non-controlling
interests (551)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZNEEZHEEIBEEE (1,124)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EFERERZRE
interests -
Net generated from operating activities 4% % & B F7 13 % 58 21,398
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTR), 8
investing activities BEFE 1,058
Net cash generated from financing RETERESRE TR
activities -
Net (decrease)/increase BERBELSEERZ
In cash and cash equivalents CR2) /B inEEE 22,456
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

42. HEB AT ZHR—&

- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZERERZFEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BAGZHE &
- continued
Jiaxing Shuguang =EEX
2019
—ZE-hE
HK$'000
FET
Current assets REEE 36,300
Non-current assets FRBEE 8,971
Current liabilities RBas 4,598
Non-current liabilities FRBEE -
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AELERZ
of the Company 22,370
Non-controlling interests FEERER 18,303
Revenue g 69,245
Profit for the year KEERER 1,854
Profit attributable to owners of the Company &2 F#EE A ELER 1,020
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests  FE 122 IR 4 25 FE {5 % A 834
Profit for the year

REEER 1,854
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =S =—ZFF=ZHA=+—HLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42.
— continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

BT ZEHR—&

(b) WEEXERRBEZEZAM
BAEZEE— |

- continued
Jiaxing Shuguang - continued mHEX-#&
2019
—ZE-hE
HK$'000
FET
Total comprehensive AAREBEABEEZEHEELATE
loss attributable to
owners of the Company (452)
Total comprehensive FERERESEE (BB) IR BEE
(loss)/income attributable to
non-controlling interests (370)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEL2HEEEAER (822)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ENFEERERZRE -
Net cash used in operating activities RETEFTRARESEE (1,880)
Net cash used in from investing activities RETHARES TR (1,059)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEFFEHE S FEE -
Net cash decrease ReRBSEEEEZRSFERD
in cash and cash equivalents (2,939)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —E_ZEF=A=+—HILLFE

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March
2020 and up to the date of this report

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019.
Under the transition methods, comparative information is
not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting

policies are disclosed in Note 2.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 25 July 2018, the Group completed to disposal 100%
equity interests in Pico Rise Group with the amounts of
HK$900,000 was not yet received during the year ended 31

March 2019 as other receivable.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has no

major non-cash transaction within the year.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June
2020.
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Financial Summary

MR E

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE —Z-_FEF=A=+—HLFE

2020
—F-FF
HK$'000
TET

2020
—F°%F

HK$’000
FET

For the year ended 31 March
BE-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-hEFE ZE-N\F ZE—+tF ZE-KF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TExT TExT
326,926 330,455 269,515 1,574,607
(46,065) (90,847) (29,785) (41,154)
(4,252) (6,176) (3,577) (3,942)
- - 39,809 -
(50,317) (97,023) 6,447 (45,096)
(50,356) (102,735) 10,208 (43,372)
39 5,712 (3,761) (1,724)
(50,317) (97,023) 6,447 (45,096)
For the year ended 31 March
BE=-HA=+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-AF ZE-N\F ZE-tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET BT TExT TExT
233,402 352,683 382,340 877,870
(85,792) (101,998) (94,445) (483,524)
147,610 250,685 287,895 394,346

RESULTS
Revenue =
(Loss)/profit before taxation  BRELAT (&512) /3% F
Taxation Bitg
Discontinued operation CRIEEEER
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (F8) &5
(Loss)/profit attributable to AT A £ FE4S
(E#8) &7
- Owners of the Company ~ —ARAFEEA
- Non-controlling interests ~ —JFiR R #E %
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER&AR
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BeE
GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020



6P

GOOD FELLOW HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
EREREBRRRLFE

(& 85227224388

www.gf-healthcare.com/

@ Unit 3309, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
& LR T 5618 P 168-200%%
EERLEEIR9E



	封面
	香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交所」）GEM之特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	封底

